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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board™) of directors (the “Directors™) of SH Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company"), | am pleased to present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year” or “FY2019").

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical
engineering (“E&M engineering”) services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts on
the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and air-
conditioning system (“MVAC system”) and also provide services in relation to
low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including fire services
system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

During the Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue by approximately
HK$28.4 million, or 7.7%, from approximately HK$367.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (“Last Year” or “FY2018") to approximately HK$396.3
million for the Year. The Group recorded a profit for the Year of approximately
HK$22.7 million.

During the Year, the Group was awarded 23 projects with an aggregate contract
sum of approximately HK$693.3 million, out of which 3 projects with an
aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$286.4 million were related to
electrical system installation. The awarding of new projects would provide the
Group a stable revenue and eaming in the coming years.

The various policy initiatives and increasing public expenditures on infrastructure
by the Hong Kong Government are beneficial to the construction industry and
E&M engineering services industry in both public and private sectors in Hong
Kong. For the public sector, initiatives by the Government such as increasing
public housing supply and the implementation of infrastructure projects including
the Kai Tak Development Project will provide constant stimulus for the industry.
The private sector has also been benefited from the recent urban planning
initiated by the Government including urban redevelopment, change in urban
land use and revitalisation of industrial buildings, which offers steady and
continuous land supply for private residential development and commercial
buildings. Besides, active real estate transactions have also attracted developers
to continue to invest in the Hong Kong real estate market, which has spurred
demand on the construction and E&M engineering services in private sector.
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Despite various opportunities in the market, the Group is confronting certain
industry-wide challenges which cause impact on our operation. In particular, the
labour shortage problem, exacerbated by an ageing workforce and lack of skilled
talents, will exert pressure on the Group's business. Besides, the competition in
the industry becomes more intensified since new participants with appropriate
skills, local experience, capital and requisite licenses granted by the regulatory
bodies could enter the market. In order to maintain stable revenue and earning
and achieve further growth in the future, the Group has adopted a more
competitive pricing strategy to bid for sizable projects. Having said that, the
Group will continue to bid for targeted projects with reasonable profit margin.

The Group will keep our endeavour to diversify our projects in different E&M
engineering services in order to tap into the opportunities in the growing market.
We are content that the Group's revenue contribution by services in relation to
low voltage electrical system has increased from approximately 8.7% in Last year
to approximately 20.5% in the Year. During the Year, the Group has been
awarded 3 projects with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$ 286.4
million, which were related to electrical system installation. Among which, being
the nominated subcontractor for the electrical installation for a proposed
residential development in Ap Lei Chau with a contract sum of approximately
HK$214.3 million would be a key electrical installation project to us. Besides,
during the Year we were registered as a Fire Service Installation Contractor in
Classes | &2 of the Fire Services Department. With our long-established
reputation, experience and proven track record in the industry, the Group takes
a positive attitude in achieving a steady growth in our business in the years to
come.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during the
Year. | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers,
suppliers, subcontractors, other business partners and our shareholders for their
continuous support. To reward our shareholders, the Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HKI.4 cents per share.

Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical
system and other E&M system, including fire services system, plumbing and
drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue slightly increased by approximately HK$28.4 million, or 7.7%, from
approximately HK$367.9 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$396.3 million
for FY2019. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2019
are outlined below.

Projects awarded in FY2019

During FY2019, we were awarded 23 projects with an aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$693.3 million (out of which 3 projects with an aggregate
contract sum of approximately HK$286.4 million were related to electrical
system installation).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects awarded
in FY2019 in terms of contract sum:

AEETEZERENERHEBREIER
1% o AR EL SRR EREHMIE -
LR REEHPCBRZE R R G 0 ERH
R MRHEREBERRGNEM
WERG (BB RS - HkMEEs &
5) B IRTS ©

¥ EE

MM EER — S — N\ FERNL36798H
B TERMIEINA284B BB T 77%
ET-NHFRNA63IBEEBTT ° =
T-NPFERNTEEA MAENE
CERERSR S Sl AN N

R-B-NBMEERNER
RZE—NMF  BRMEEREGLORE
HAE6BIABBITM2BEER(EhE
HHBENE8AB BB TTH3EER &
BERERLTEER) -

TRFINZEHNSHEAEN TN
FREAKRIARNFE

Type
(Residential/
Non-residential)
Key scope of work B (fg/ Date of award Contract sum
TETRER FEE) ERAH CEEA
HK$'million
BEET
Electrical system installation for a proposed residential development at Ap Lei Chau Residential 31 January 2019 2143
BN RRETERERNERASLE EE —E-NF-A=t—H
MVAC system installation for a property development at Yuen Long Non-residential || September 2018 1200
TANNFERAR ORHBREBAR LK FEE “E-NFAAT—H
Electrical system installation for a proposed residential development at Wong Chuk Hang  Residential |7 May 2018 720
BEMRNRREEERBANEREZALE £ “Z-\FRAtLA
MVAC system installation for a property development at Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po Residential 10 August 2018 64.0
ABHAANYEERE R EIBRZHERLE e “Z-\$7\AtH
MVAC system installation for a residential development at Tuen Mun Residential [4 November 2018 604
BRNEERREROEMBRZHARLE £ “E-\F+—AtWmA
Note:  “Residential projects” refer to projects that involve residential flats while “Non-residential projects” Mfat - [FEEE | BFREEMEMNIER @ 3

refer to projects that do not involve residential flats.
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Major projects undertaken in FY2019

During FY2019, the Group continued to focus our efforts on the supply,
installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system. fE -
Revenue contributed by projects relating to MVAC system and low voltage
electrical system accounted for approximately 79.5% and 20.5% respectively

(2018: 91.3% and 8.7%).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects
undertaken in FY2019 in terms of revenue contribution:

Key scope of work

TETRERE

MVAC system installation for a property development at Tseung Kwan O

RERNMEZRRR ORMBRZHARLE

MVAC system installation for a property development at Yuen Long
THAMNFRRIAR ORMBREBAR LR

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development
at Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po
ABALARSEEHEARNRNBRZEARSLE

Electrical system installation for a proposed composite building
at North Point
tANEEFARTRANERERLE

MVAC system installation for a proposed residential development
at Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po
ABAABNREETREEROBIBREAZRLE

Management Discussion and Analysis

Type
(Residential/
Non-residential)
B (s
FEE)

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

BEENWNR M

RE-B-AMFAZENERER

R-ZF—hBF - $$@% BTN
REREEEMBRZERARFSRE
BERRL - #HCBRZE R R 5L EE
ERERABANAEBBERA KD AL

g-

B795% % 205%(—ZF— N\F :913% &
8.7%) °
TREIRWEERGTEN T — 1
FAERAKNEB RS
Revenue
recognised

during FY2019
Contract sum R=Z— R B

Date of award

ERAH BHEE FRANKES

HK$'million ~ HK$'million

BERT HERT

25 February 2016 161.0 755

- R"E-A-+HH

20 June 2017 699 57.1
—t & A-1H

7 December 2017 80.7 57.0
—2—+F+=A+tA

9 May 2017 328 215

—tFRANHA
24 October 2017 56.7 20.

—tF+H=+MA
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

Recent Development and Future Prospects

Subsequent to FY2019 and up to the date of this report, we were awarded 5
projects with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$283.3 million,
which were related to MVAC system installation.

The construction industry and E&M engineering services industry in Hong Kong
have continued to expand. For the public sector, initiatives by the Government
such as increasing public housing supply and the implementation of infrastructure
projects including the Kai Tak Development project will provide constant stimulus
for the industry. The private sector has also benefited from the Hong Kong
Government's effort in increasing land supply used for private residential and
commercial development. The active real estate transactions have also attracted
developers to continue to invest in the Hong Kong real estate market.

Despite the opportunities in the market, the Group is confronting certain
industry-wide challenges. In particular, the labour shortage problem, exacerbated
by an ageing workforce and lack of skilled talents, will exert pressure on the
Group's business. Besides, due to the intensified competition in the industry, the
Group has adopted a more competitive pricing strategy to bid for sizable
projects. Having said that, the Group will continue to bid for targeted projects
with reasonable profit margin.

The Group will keep our endeavour to diversify our projects in different E&M
engineering services in order to tap into the opportunities in the growing market.
We are content that the Group's revenue contribution by services in relation to
low voltage electrical system has increased from approximately 8.7% in FY2018
to approximately 20.5% in FY2019. During the Year, the Group has been
awarded 3 projects with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$286.4
million, which were related to electrical system installation. Besides, during the
Year we were registered as a Fire Service Installation Contractor in Classes | & 2
of the Fire Services Department.

With our long-established reputation, experience and proven track record in the
industry, the Group takes a positive attitude in achieving a steady growth in our
business in the years to come.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue slightly increased by approximately HK$28.4 million, or 7.7%, from
approximately HK$367.9 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$396.3 million
for FY2019. Revenue contributed by projects relating to the supply, installation
and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system was
approximately 79.5% and 20.5% respectively (2018: 91.3% and 8.7% respectively).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$14.7 million, or 23.6% from
approximately HK$62.3 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$47.6 million for
FY2019. Our gross profit margin decreased by approximately 4.9 percentage
points, from approximately 16.9% for FY2018 to approximately 12.0% for
FY2019. The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to
(i) intensified competition in the industry faced by the Group that the Group
adopted a more competitive pricing strategy in securing new projects; and (ii)
increase in direct staff costs as a result of more employees were hired to handle
the awarded projects currently on hand.

Other income

Other income for FY2019 increased by approximately HK$0.6 million, from
approximately HK$0.7 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$1.3 million for
FY2019. The change was mainly attributable to the increase in bank interest
income and dividend income.

Other gain

We recorded an increase in other gain of approximately HK$1.0 million for
FY2019, which was attributable to the fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly represented administrative staff costs,
professional fees, depreciation and rental expenses. The amount remained
relatively stable, with an amount of approximately HK$19.5 million for FY2019
and HK$19.4 million for FY2018.

BEER R DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

Finance costs

Our finance costs solely represented bank interest expenses. The amount
remained relatively stable, with an amount of approximately HK$0.4 million for
FY2019 and FY2018.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.0 million, from
approximately HK$7.6 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$4.6 million for
FY2019 due to the combined effect of the above factors. The effective tax rate
for FY2019 was approximately 16.8% (2018: 17.6%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Based on the above factors, profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately HK$12.9 million, or approximately 36.2%, from
approximately HK$35.6 million for FY2018 to approximately HK$22.7 million for
FY2019.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2019, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
approximately HK$236.9 million (2018: HK$228.0 million) and bank borrowings
of approximately HK$9.2 million (2018: HK$ 2.1 million).

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working
capital being financed by our operating cash flows, bank borrowings and the
retained profits.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$71.3 million (2018: HK$158.9 million) and short term bank deposits of
approximately HK$28.0 million (2018: nil). The bank deposits of approximately
HK$3 1.1 million pledged with a bank as at 31 March 2018 to secure the bank
borrowings and banking facilities including performance guarantees issued by the
bank was released during FY2019.

As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.9
times (2018: 3.0 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$9.2 million (2018: HK$12.1 million). As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a
facility agreement entered into with a bank with a facility limit of approximately
HK$54.0 million with the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In
case of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu”) and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”) are
not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the bank
[4 days in advance; and (ii) In case of Mr. Yu is not entitled to be chairman of the
Company, the Group should notify the bank |4 days in advance.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$30.0 million. The Company had made
undertakings relating to certain performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders, namely Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, pursuant to the facility agreement
including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the
largest shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of the Company. The facility
agreement remains effective as at the date of this report.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's gearing ratio was approximately 3.9% (2018:
5.3%), calculated as the bank borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end
of the respective years and multiplied by 100%.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$200.2 million (2018: HK$173.0 million). The increase in net current assets
position was mainly attributable to the net profit generated from the Group’s
operations during the Year.

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from the banks to meet its
liquidity requirements. The Board is not aware of any liquidity issue that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures for FY2019 amounted to approximately
HK$0.9 million (2018: HK$0.8 million), which was incurred due to the purchase
of property and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's revenue-generating activities and bank borrowings were transacted
in Hong Kong Dollar, which is the functional currency of the group entities. The
Board considers that the Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange
risk, and had not entered into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will
review the Group'’s foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time and
will apply hedging where necessary.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”™) on 3 January 2017
(the “Listing Date") through global offering (the “Global Offering”) as described
in the section “Structure and Condition of the Global Offering” in the prospectus
of the Company dated |9 December 2016 (the “Prospectus”).

Based on the offer price of HK$1.20 per share, the net proceeds of the
80,000,000 issued shares received by the Company was approximately HK$69.0
million, after deducting the listing expenses borne by the Company. The
proposed application of net proceeds as stated in the Prospectus has been
adjusted according to the principles and proposed percentage of utilisation as
specified in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Up to 31 March 2019, the net proceeds were used as follows:

BERE
HR LR TRREEE

Intended use "

Development and expansion of E&M engineering
services business

Provision of performance guarantees for projects EEIEHIEHBAIRE

on hand

Installation of Enterprise Resource Planning system

RREFERRERS

(“ERP system”) (TERP %4t 1)
General working capital —REEESR
Note: Details of the intended use and the implementation plan are set out in the section headed “Future

Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

As stated in the Prospectus, the works for development and expansion of E&M
engineering services business involved the purchase of plant and equipment,
employment of engineering and technical staff and obtaining relevant ISO
qualifications and the works up to 31 March 2019 according to the Company's
implementation plan set out in the Prospectus had already been completed as
scheduled. The remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$3.| million as at 31
March 2019 allocated for the development and expansion of E&M engineering
services business are intended to be fully utilised for the same specific use by 30
September 2019.

BEENWNR M

BE-T-NFZA=+—8 FEX
E@%ﬁ%mT-

Unutilised

Utilisation up to amount as at

Net proceeds from 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
Global Offering EZ=Z—-NF RI-ZT-IF
ER¥E =A=t-H Z=A=t-H
P& ERE EBA NRBAZE
HKE'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
304 273 3

297 29.7 =

20 09 [l

69 69 -

69.0 64.8 42

Kret - BUEREKERABNFERNBRER R
Kt &I RS FORME ] —& -

BB ERN  BREEAEKET
EPREESNIESREETARR
B - ERAIREEEMET - REISHE

BISOER MBEZE_T—-—NLF=AH
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AR EMT ST - R - T —NF
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TREBREEBORBRIFIIRFERL3.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER R DT

For the installation of ERP system, as the Company requires more time than
expected to source the required system from potential suppliers that suit the
Company's needs and expects to take a period of time to implement the system,
the completion of installation of the ERP system is expected to be delayed till the
end of March 2020. Accordingly, the remaining net proceeds of approximately
HKS$ 1.1 million as at 31 March 2019 allocated for the installation of ERP system
are intended to be fully utilised for the same specific use by 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held the unutilised net proceeds mainly in
short-term deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2019, performance guarantees of approximately HK$61.7 million
(2018: HK$31.5 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group'’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s obligations
under the contracts entered into between the Group and its customers. If the
Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers to whom
performance guarantees have been given, such customers may demand the
banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will
become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

The Group had no contingent liability as at 31 March 2019.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group'’s leasehold land and buildings amounted to
approximately HK$19.9 million (31 March 2018: HK$20.6 million) were pledged
with a bank to secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including
performance guarantees issued by the bank. The bank deposits of approximately
HK$3 1.1 million pledged with a bank as at 31 March 2018 to secure the bank
borrowings and banking facilities including performance guarantees issued by that
bank was released during FY2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$0.7 million in relation to acquisition of property and equipment contracted
but not provided for (2018: nil).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 120 employees (2018: 93). The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits
and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on
each employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training
to its employees according to the work requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 31 March 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 March 2019.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERBRE

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We engage in projects related to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including
fire services, plumbing and drainage, in both private and public sectors in Hong
Kong.

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report is established in
accordance with the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Our policies in connection with
material ESG issues arising from our principal business for the Year, along with
our performances around the issues are disclosed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group is dedicated to fulfilling expectations from stakeholders on our ESG
practices. To achieve this, we have established a governance framework to align
ESG governance with our strategic development and to embed ESG matters into
our operations. Our corporate social responsibility structure is divided into two
main components, the Board and an ESG working group, which is comprised of
the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of different departments.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the governance and development of the
Group’s ESG management approach, strategies, priorities and objectives. The
ESG working group is delegated by the Board to design the implementation plan
in consistence with the overall ESG direction set forth by the Board and is
responsible for coordinating with different departments for the execution of ESG
measures and policies. The ESG working group is also accountable for the
collection and analysis of internal ESG data, feedback review of external
stakeholders, communication to the Board for key ESG matters, as well
preparation of the ESG report.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the audit committee of the Company, who
oversees the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and ensures that ESG risks are
being covered. Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted and the results are reported to the
Board regularly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

COMPLIANCE

To ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the ESG working group is
responsible for monitoring legal updates and statutory requirements relevant to
our Group's business. In response to new regulatory obligations, we have
conducted prompt communication to affected departments and levels of the
Group for their immediate actions to eradicate potential non-compliance matters.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value stakeholders’ feedback to understand the ESG issues they prioritise
and concern. Our stakeholders range from shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers/subcontractors, and to the community as a whole. We seek to
proactively engage them, maintain ongoing relationships as well as understand
their views through multiple communication channels. The following list
summarises the communication channels between stakeholders and us:

RS- HEREREE

aR

RERETERER ESGCIEERE
EREAAKREXBARAEREH MR
EBERK - BEEFNEERY  HMAE
MRBARNEESZENIPIEREE -
AR BIRBTEERBEENTARE
T o

KFOESR

BHEREOHENRE  WTHEREE
FERBNRBIINESGEE - BFiFHE
BEKRE EE TP HER K
EREAREELR - RASKEEZE
BBEREBEIBEEMR  RIFHE
MBI RIA R TR PSR - TREA
FrinEERM 2 EHEERE

Stakeholder Group Communication Methods ErhEEE BERE
Shareholders —  Annual general meetings A% B - BEAEFKRE

- Annual and interim reports - FERVHHRE

- Company's website - QEA8uh

= Press releases, if necessary - HFEB(mERE)
Employees —  Staff meetings (== - BIgz

—  Company activities -  RANE®

—  Staff training — BT
Customers - Feedback = - kg

—  Satisfaction surveys - wmEERAE
Suppliers/Subcontractors ~ —  Quotation and tendering processes HrER, - WERBZRRIE

—  Quotation and installation processes KGR - WERLERE

- Supplier/Subcontractor evaluation - ERE S OREER

mechanism ATk 1 1

Community —  Community services = - fRART

—  Company's website - AR

= Press releases, if necessary . HER (A NE)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERBRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Based on stakeholder engagement through the aforementioned channels, we
have performed a materiality assessment to identify relevant ESG issues and
assess their materiality to our businesses as well as to our stakeholders. The
materiality assessment process is set out as follows:

o Identification of potential issues: Initial screening of related issues with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in the Listing Rules (“ESG Guide") and benchmarking suitable
peers’ material ESG issues;

e Stakeholder engagement: Internal and external stakeholders have been
invited to provide rating and comments to each ESG issue through
questionnaires and established engagement channels;

e Prioritisation: The results from issues identification and stakeholder
engagement have been consolidated and considered to assess and

EEMFE

ENFERLEARBENFMHESHE - B
BETEZ MM - A ERBEAESG
Bl EHBRMOERRFNED
EEH  c EEMFGHEROT ¢

- BEHE

B 2% TR

RE - e RERMmERESI([ESG

B3l D EEREREE

I ¥ 58

AHEEBEAESGEER] M ELE

- BOEZE: DEE

SIS,

HhELSBESAEREEIHNRE
RiEBAEEESGHERE T MAGT

A .
(2liii

« RIMEBERERF  BEHA RN

SDENERDKES

W AEZ LA

prioritise ESG risks; and

Validation: Our ESG working group has validated and confirmed the key
material ESG issues, and how they link to the respective aspects and KPIs
of the ESG Guide.

APfh ESG B R AT BRIRFF + &

B cE  FPIMESG TIEHB BB

REABEARESGEE  UERKESE
WN{R] 3 B E ESG #E5 5| /Y &8 75 E &
R IEBIEIZ -

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ESG ISSUES FOR THE GROUP

AEBMEARESGEENBE

ESG aspects set out in the EtHRAFE HEEEEEEHN
Listing Rules Material ESG issues to the Group ESGHHEAE ESGi&RE
Environmental RESE
Al Emissions . Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions Al HERR e  HENEEFEEHE
it
e Waste Management . EYER

A2 Use of Resources' . Energy Consumption and Efficiency A2 EBIER o REEOHEFE R E
A3 The Environment and . Noise Control A3IRIB N o IR

Natural Resources . Environmental Management System KRB R e IREBEIEHES

Due to our business nature as an E&M engineering service provider, our operation does not involve
any significant consumption of water and packaging materials and therefore, the relevant disclosures

are not applicable.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS- HEREREE

ESG aspects set out in the EtHRAFE HEAEEEEEN
Listing Rules Material ESG issues to the Group ESGAHBASE  ESGH&RE
Social #EermE
Bl Employment 0 Equal Opportunities Bl £ . RFHKE
¢ Recruitment and Termination . BER&IEA
o Promotion, Remuneration and Working - BEA -FMRIE
Conditions ESEs
B2 Health and Safety «  Occupational Health and Safety RERENEZE « BEREEZZE
B3 Development and Training Employee Training and Career B3ZE&IEI - ([EESEIIRBEE
Development i
B4 Labor Standards +  Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced B4 45 T 4R s HXIEETK®AL
Labor ED)
B5 Supply Chain Management = Supply Chain Monitoring BoftfEsEEIE - {pEsEEDA
B6 Product Responsibility . Quality Management B6EmE T - mEERE
. Protection of Customer Information and - REEXFEREA
Intellectual Property Rights HEE
B7 Anti-corruption s Preventing Bribery and Corruption B/RER - PBILLEERRRERE
B8 Community Investment ¢ Charity Support B8t mIEE - RERD
ENVIRONMENTAL RBEAME

The Group is committed to manage long-term environmental risks and impacts
to maintain a sustainable business. The “Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety Manual” (the “Manual”) has been set up to offer guidance for the
minimisation of environmental footprint. The Manual has been formulated in
accordance with the International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO")
[4001:2015 environmental management system and Occupational Health and
Safety Assessment Series (“OHSAS") 18001:2007. We have delegated adequate
resources to implement and adhere to the Manual, in order to achieve high
environmental performances at both our offices and sites. We have cooperated
with employees and contractors to enhance their awareness towards
environmental protection, in key areas including greenhouse gases (“GHG")
emissions, energy consumption and efficiency, waste disposal, air quality and
noise. In addition, we have ensured employees of all levels understand the
environmental aspects of their duties and are capable to carry out such
obligations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERBRE

The Group closely monitors the compliance of legal and regulatory requirements
from both local and international authorities. The Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance,
Noise Control Ordinance, Building Energy Efficiency Ordinance, and relevant
regulations as set out by the Environmental Protection Department and Electrical
and Mechanical Service Department of the HKSAR, are identified to have
significant impact on the Group in the environmental aspect.

During the Year, the Group has not identified any material non-compliance with
environment-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

Air and Greenhouse Gases Emissions

The major source of our emissions is the indirect GHG emissions generated
from our electricity consumption in offices. The total indirect GHG emissions and
intensity for the FY2019 were 67.26 tonnes CO,e (2018: 58.43 tonnes) and
0.004 tonnes COse per square foot area (2018: 0.005 tonnes per square foot
area) respectively. The increase in the absolute value of GHG emissions and the
electricity consumption were mainly due to the inclusion of new offices area in
the FY2019. Meanwhile, the decrease in the intensity of both GHG emission and
that of electricity consumption were owing to our continuous effort in
implementing various energy saving initiatives.

Due to our business nature of providing project management services, the actual
engineering works are performed by our subcontractors, therefore no significant
air emissions were generated directly by the Group during the Year. Even though,
we are committed to comply with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance by
managing our subcontractors’ environmental practices through contractual
obligations and site monitoring. The Air Pollution Control Ordinance requires the
development of working methods to minimise dust impacts on the surrounding
environment at a construction site. Emission limits for vehicles in terms of
pollutants including Sulphur Dioxide have also been specified in the ordinance.
To this end, the Group requires the covering of all construction materials in
transit by our subcontractors to avoid the spreading of dusts and particles to the
surrounding during transportation. Additionally, to ensure the emission levels
stipulated by law to be met, the Group encourages our subcontractors to use
low-sulphur diesel for vehicles and to conduct regular inspection and
maintenance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To be in line with the Environmental Protection Department's effort in phasing
out ozone depleting substances, the Group advocates the avoidance of ozone
depleting refrigerants such as Hydrochlorofluorocarbons in our projects, and
promote the use of more environmentally friendly replacements such as
Chlorofluorocarbon. Also, the purchase of refrigerants is made only when
necessary to prevent leakage and pollution at construction sites due to the
excessive chemical storage.

Moreover, for projects involving asbestos, we require our specialist
subcontractors to assign only workers with relevant qualifications and experience
to perform the contracted works, and they should be supervised by a consultant
registered with Environment Protection Department.

We have also undertaken a series of measures to control the indirect GHG
emissions. For details, please refer to section “Energy Consumption and
Efficiency” below.

Waste Management

During the FY2019, 4.9 tonnes of paper (2018: 4.4 tonnes) were consumed, in
which paper is identified to be the major source of non-hazardous waste
produced by our Group. No hazardous waste was produced directly by the
Group due to our business nature. For waste reduction and operation efficiency
purposes, the Group has launched various paperless initiatives as follows:

5 Deployment of electronic communications instead of circulation of printed
notices, as well as electronic file storage and sharing to reduce waste at
source;

. Initiate the “Collection of Recycle Paper Program” during the Year to

advocate the sorting of paper, so that paper containing non-confidential
data is recycled for better use in South East Asia;

. Used paper collection for recycled use was implemented;

. Support government environment protection scheme, which is the Waste
Electrical & Electronic Equipment (“WEEE") removal services for recycled
use; and

0 Employees are also encouraged to carry out paper-saving office practices

such as duplex printing and to use recycling paper for printing internal
documents to minimise the use of paper.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERKRE

Despite that the Group does not produce hazardous waste directly, we have
imposed stringent controls on any potential hazardous waste generated by our
subcontractors. The Group has established guidelines to require our
subcontractors to implement sound waste management mechanism and
measures, and to adopt practices in compliance with legislations including the
Waste Disposal Ordinance. All wastes generated on site are required to be
packed, labelled and stored securely in a proper manner, especially for chemical
wastes. Further, subcontractors shall be registered as a chemical waste producer
to produce chemical waste. A licensed collector should be appointed by the
responsible subcontractors to handle and dispose of both construction and
chemical wastes at a systematical manner to designated sites. Records of disposal
should also be maintained for inspections internally as well as by the
Environmental Protection Department.

In support with the Government’s environment protection scheme on WEEE
implemented during the Year, the Group has launched a disposal campaign for
obsolete or damaged office electrical equipment to ensure proper handling of
electrical waste and for recycling purpose.

Energy Consumption and Efficiency

During FY2019, the amount and intensity of electricity consumed directly by the
Group were 85,676 kWh (2018: 73,123 kWh) and 5.4 kWh per square foot of
office area respectively (2018: 6.5 kWh per square foot of office area).

The Group is dedicated to control electricity consumption as well as the
corresponding GHG emissions, and hence the following energy-saving principles
and initiatives have been developed and implemented to align sustainability
concept into our business operation during the Year:

. Eliminate unnecessary energy consumption by switching off idle office
equipment, lighting and air-conditioning, especially when leaving conference
rooms after meetings and interviews;

0 Use energy efficient appliances in our offices, such as LED lightings and

bottled water machine with Grade | Energy Label;

. Office equipment with energy label issued by Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department are selected for purchase, apart from price
considerations;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. Raise awareness among employees by regular training and communications
on best energy saving practices;

e Encourage employees to commute by public transport/mass transit to
reduce roadside emissions; and

. Incorporate energy saving behaviors into daily business practices.

Besides, we endeavor to mitigate climate change not only through proper
controlling of the electricity consumption within the Group, but also through
introduction of energy and water-efficient E&M systems to our clients. Products
such as energy-friendly motors and multi-speed fans for ventilation systems,
water-cooled heat rejection systems, and condensate water collection system are
offered to our clients to strive hand-in-hand towards a more sustainable global
community.

Noise Control

The Group is aware of the noise generated from production facilities of our
subcontractors at construction sites, as a result of E&M works involving heavy
mechanical machines and equipment. At such, we require our subcontractors to
adhere strictly to all relevant local laws and regulations, including the Noise
Control Ordinance.

For instance, only equipment with government-approved noise emission labels
are allowed to be used and such equipment can only be operated within
restricted hours to minimise nuisance to the surrounding environment and
residents. Regular noise test and controls have been conducted before
commencement and during the ongoing process of construction works to ensure
noise generated within acceptable levels stipulated in laws and regulations.
Soundproof enclosures have been installed for equipment and facilities generating
loud noise, while shock absorbing measures have been in place to reduce noise
pollution. Close monitoring of our subcontractors, such as onsite inspection is
performed to prevent and detect any potential legal violation.

Environmental Management System

The Group is obliged to proactively strengthen and optimise acts in mitigating
environmental impacts of our operations. Not only do we achieve environmental
compliance, but also endeavor to attain more sustainable work environment and
production process. We regularly perform environmental assessments to identify
potential environmental risks in workplace, production sites of subcontractors, as
well as the surrounding areas to ensure alignment with our environmental
commitment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRE

In addition, the Group has established an ISO [4001:2015 accredited
environmental management system with a purpose to emphasise our

environmental stewardship throughout our business operation. The key features

are summarised as below:

24

Identify, evaluate and assess environmental risks as well as relevant
statutory requirements on an ongoing basis;

Engage major stakeholders such as employees and subcontractors during
the risk assessment process, and jointly develop appropriate mitigation
plans;

Establish measurable and practicable environmental performance objectives
and targets, and to conduct regular status evaluations;

Design project plans with consideration of environmental risks and impacts,
and ensure routine monitoring of plan achievement progress;

Launch environmental protection measures and conduct timely reviews
over operating effectiveness of the controls;

Ensure the availability of resources, and define roles and responsibilities to
facilitate effective environmental performance management;

Investigate, handle and document environmental incidents properly in
accordance with relevant legislations and standards, and identify preventive
and corrective measures; and

Perform management review of the environmental management system,
through for instance analysis of monitoring results of environmental
measures, to assess its adequacy and effectiveness, and identify
opportunities for improvement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL
Equal Opportunities

The Group recognises employees as an important asset to drive our business’
future success, and therefore we invest in and optimise our human capital by
driving towards a more desirable workplace. We believe that upholding the open
and fairess values is key in attracting and retaining talents.

We embrace the principle of equal employment opportunities and value diversity
within our workforce. Employees are treated with dignity and respect, free from
any kinds of discrimination and harassment.

All decisions regarding recruitment, termination, training, remuneration,
promotion of employees are based on personal capabilities, experience and
qualifications without any sort of discrimination on race, skin color, religion,
nationality, gender, age, disability or other characteristics.

Our human resources management adheres strictly to the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance and the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong. During the Year, we are not aware of
any case of material non-compliance with employment and labor-related laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

Recruitment and Termination

Moreover, the Group has established a structured recruitment and termination
process, which is laid out in our human resources policy. All applicants must
undergo formal and objective assessments to determine whether they have the
aptitude and competence to meet the requirements of the Group’s business
development. Examination and approval procedures are properly in place to
ensure fairness in the recruitment process. Concerning employee termination,
the Group observes strictly to the guidelines in Employment Ordinance,
especially in case of forced termination. Any disciplinary action and violations to
company policy may entail suspension or termination of employees, and such
circumstances and procedures for handling have been clearly stated in the
internally-circulated Employee Handbook.
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RIE - HERERBRE

Promotion, Remuneration and Working Conditions

The Group has formulated remuneration policy and evaluation mechanism with
stringent adherence to objectivity and faimess principles. We offer competitive
remuneration package to our employees to continue to retain and attract talents.
Staff remuneration is determined on the basis of market levels, profitability of the
Group, regulatory requirements, and individual performances assessed through
our performance appraisal mechanism. Supervisors are responsible for carrying
out systematic performance analysis of their subordinates based on criteria such
as their goal achievements, strengths, attitudes and development opportunities.
Such evaluation results will be transformed into basis for promotion, wage
adjustment and bonus. The Minimum Wage Ordinance, Employment Ordinance
and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance are closely monitored to ensure
compliance with legal requirements in employee compensation. We respect staff
privacy and hence have adopted measures in keeping staff remuneration data
confidential.

Staff are entitled to adequate annual leave, sickness allowance, maternity and
patemity leave, as well as rest days with reference to the Employment Ordinance
and General Holidays Ordinance. We have stipulated reasonable and fair working
hours, work allocation and arrangements to accommodate for work-life balance
of our employees. To raise employee morale and cohesion, the Group has
subsidised staff gatherings such as luncheons, annual dinners and bowling
practices to enhance staff well-being.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to control and eliminate any cause of occupational
issues, and we put health and safety of our employees, subcontractors and other
relevant parties as one of our foremost responsibilities. Therefore, we have made
active efforts to attain the highest standard of work safety practices. With a set of
occupational health and safety management system policy accredited with
OHSAS 18001:2007 certification developed, the following principles and
approaches are implemented among employees and subcontractors:

e To comply with statutory and contractual requirements on occupational
health and safety and relevant codes of practice;

. To take occupational health and safety into account when planning
engineering activities;

e To continuously improve health and safety measures, performance and
management skills through a system of monitoring, analysis and feedback;

. To provide adequate resources, training and instructions to implement
effective safety measures;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. To ensure an effective and efficient communication system on safety
management and incident reporting; and

e To maintain continual improvement of occupational health and safety
performance by identifying safety risks and minimising the impacts.

Safety risk assessment is conducted to review and identify all health and safety
related risks before commencement of projects. A safety team consists of
members possessing relevant safety qualifications has been assigned for
performing the safety risk assessment, and to incorporate the appropriate
safeguards practices in the project plans. Operational safety protocols have been
formulated and regularly reviewed, for all production personnel’s strict adherence.
Site workers are also briefed for potential safety hazards by the safety team prior
to commencement of work to minimise chances of accidents. Site inspections
and regular monitoring are in place to ensure safety protocols are not violated
and are operating effectively.

To enhance employee’s safety awareness and response to emergency events, the
Group organises safety trainings for staff on regular basis, for instance in relation
to fire hazards and construction safety. Such training aims at enhancing
employee’s familiarisation with means of escape, skills of evacuation in accidents,
and appropriate response in times of unprecedented accidents.

Relevant statutory requirements, including Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance is strictly observed. In particular, according to the Employee’s
Compensation Ordinance, the employer is liable to pay compensation in respect
of injuries or fatalities sustained by its employees as a result of accidents arising
out of and in the course of employment. During the Year, there were no injuries
or fatalities recorded for our direct employees, and we were not aware of any
case of material non-compliance with occupational health and safety-related laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

Employee Training and Career Development

The Group has attached great importance to the cultivation of talents, for the
purpose of more satisfying job performance and continuous development of
employees. Therefore, the Group has devised and implemented a wide spectrum
of training activities, which consist of induction programs and external training.

Induction programs aim to introduce new employees to our Group, with sharing
of our Group'’s corporate structure, culture, and other important business
information such as policies relating to workplace safety. Through proper
induction programs, employees can better acclimatise to our Group, so as to be
prepared to thrive in their new positions.
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RIE - HERERBRE

Through external trainings, we equip our staff with relevant knowledge, technical
skills, and updated regulatory awareness, so that employees can continue create
value to our Group under an ever-changing business environment. During the
Year, our employees attended a series of training courses on diverse topics
ranging from technical to general aspects such as Building Information Modeling
training, professional workshop and training, seminars for senior managers. The
Group will continue to provide training support to our employees of all levels to
enable their professional growth and development within the Group.

In terms of career development, we support our employees to obtain
professional qualifications for their sharpening of professional job knowledge and
strengthening of managerial skills. Moreover, under our performance feedback
mechanism, supervisors are responsible for providing their subordinates with
feedback on their job accomplishments and areas of improvements. We also
encourage employees to maintain an open discussion with their department
management personnel in relation to their aspired career path and support
required.

Prohibition of Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group believes that labour relations characterised by mutual respect and
equality will enhance employee morale and unity. Therefore, we adopted a range
of policies to protect the interest of employees, for instance, we forbid any
unlawful employment including child and forced labor. All of our employees must
have reached the statutory age and possess identification documents before the
commencement of work. The employment contracts should be signed voluntarily
and without any coercion. We also require our subcontractors to register their
employees with identification document and license number to prevent the
employment of workers who are not legally eligible to take up any job duties in
Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-
compliance with child labor and forced labor-related laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, including Immigration Ordinance, in relation to unauthorised entrants
to Hong Kong and employment of illegal workers.

Supply Chain Monitoring

The Group emphasises the quality of subcontractors, suppliers and service
providers in maintaining high standards of services offered to our clients. Hence,
we engage supply chain partners after close scrutiny of their practices and
business background under our supplier evaluation mechanism. In particular we
opt for partners who are environmentally and socially responsible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In order to ensure the service quality and continuous adoption of environmental
and social practices of our supply chain partners, we maintain close
communication and monitoring with our counterparts. Regular evaluations such
as onsite inspections and assessments are conducted and any exception or non-
compliance are reported to the management immediately. Timely remediation of
the risks identified is required. Suppliers whose accreditation or production
method fall short of our required environmental and social standards will be
suspended.

Quality Management

We have adopted a customer-centric principle with a primary focus on
customers’ experience of our quality services. To achieve this aim, the Group has
established a quality management system (“QMS") policy manual, which has
been accredited with ISO 9001:2015 certification. It provides guidelines to our
employees for meeting our objectives as follows:

. To provide effective, reliable and consistent services to satisfy the demands
and expectations of our clients;

. To comply with all relevant standards, statutory and regulatory
requirements;

2 To provide appropriate training for employees to enhance skills and

knowledge to match with quality requirements of works and services;

. To monitor and improve the effectiveness of QMS by conducting periodic
internal reviews, inspections, data analysis and enhancement;

. To understand client expectation and devise proper planning before
commencement of projects to ensure accommodation of client needs; and

. To obtain feedback throughout and after the engagement from clients to
identify the improvement areas of QMS.
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RIE - HERERBRE

Protection of Customer Information and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group advocates the protection of privacy and confidential information of
our employees, customers as well as intellectual property rights. With this in
mind, we handle and store sensitive information with prudence and care, and act
in strict accordance with the six data protection principles, including data
collection, accuracy, use, security, openness and access and correction.
Information including Group strategies, past, current or potential customers,
services providers, suppliers and subcontractors shall be used for performing job
duties and such information shall not be taken away from our premises physically
or through company network unless otherwise approved.

Furthermore, employees are required to acknowledge and comply with the
confidentiality clause as stated in the Employee Handbook. Any unauthorised
access, disclosure or use of information will be subject to disciplinary actions
including termination and legal action.

During the Year, we are not aware of any case of material non-compliance
regarding service quality and data privacy-related laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Preventing Bribery and Corruption

All members of our staff, including the management, are required to strictly
comply with the Employee Handbook of our Group which includes prohibition
of all forms of corruption and fraud such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. Therefore, an internal control system has been established to control
any potential fraud risk. We have also regularly engaged independent internal
control adviser to evaluate our internal control system to ensure effective
corporate governance.

In addition, a whistle-blowing mechanism has also been formulated providing a
confidential channel to file complaint regarding fraudulent and unethical acts.
Awareness towards prevention of bribery has been boosted among employees
and management levels through provision of training from relevant organisations
such as Independent Commission Against Corruption and legal professionals.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Furthermore, our policy forbids employees to possess any financial or other
personal interest in transactions between the Group and our business partners.
Potential conflicts of interest that may increase the risk of bribery and bid-rigging
will be monitored. If there is any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest,
employees are required to report to the management immediately.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any case of material non-
compliance with corruption-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

Charity Support

The Group is committed to the undertaking of corporate social responsibility and
the promotion of social harmony. Harnessing our corporate resources, we persist
in contributing to the society by means of donations, sponsorships, and voluntary
commitments. In addition, we encourage and support our employees to take
part in voluntary services and help the underprivileged.

During the Year, our Group has been actively involved in selected community
events. For example, the Group sponsored materials and logistics in the charity
walk event of the “World Cerebral Palsy Day 2018" held by Silver Lining
Foundation. In addition, our Group has also supported certain other non-profit
organisations such as Save the Children Hong Kong Limited and Rotary Club
through monetary donations for their charity work in providing aids to
communities.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance its shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate governance which is
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code™) as set out in Appendix |0 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation
and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or
consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and
disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.
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The Board currently consists of six Directors including two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director, and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond

Save for (i) Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, and (i) Mr. Yu
Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert
confirmation on 7 July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among other things,
since 2| July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one another and
acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on all
operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member
company within the Group; the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the
Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience
for effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors are set out
on pages 50 to 54 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management"” of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the Year.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

AT AFEREFTCREINEALE
FFSER -

Attending
seminars/
reading materials
relevant to the
director’s duties

HEHEE

ESH%

HEE

Name of Directors EEpnE REY R
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) BRI EE(EE) 4
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BN E K& (TTEAEZ) v/
Mr. Yu Ho Chi GIVE =P v
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MRFELE 4
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoKESLE 4
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond N b v/

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Yu is in charge of the management of the Board
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business. The Company considered that the division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly
established.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman should at least
annually holds meetings with the independent non-executive directors without
the presence of others directors. During the Year, the Chairman had a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of others
Director.
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Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by
rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting
and finance. With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director gave a confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them
is independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the
Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility
of corporate governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and reporting
on the Group’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective
performance of the Board's responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s senior
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought
to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's expense
upon their request. All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates
on the Group’s performance and financial position to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 6 December 2016 (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board and
is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all aspects of its business. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration against a
range of objective criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee™). The
Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
The Company's dividend policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in the
Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for the
Group's future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including but not limited to the Group's overall results of
operation, financial condition, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, liquidity position, future expansions plans, the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business, other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment of the dividends by the Company will be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, the Listing Rules and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company's dividend distribution record in the
past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future. The dividend policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Group in respect
of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be
given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas
and accompanying papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of
Board meeting to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review
the documents.

During the Year, the Board held 4 meetings. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings and
are given sufficient time to review the documents and information to be
discussed in Board meetings in advance. The attendance record of each Director
is set out below:
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Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EEHE i E IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR AL (FE) 4/4
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BIXE k& (TTRAEE) 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Yu Ho Chi NS L 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MAmEE 4/4
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoxELAE 4/4
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond RIS LA 4/4

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board
member is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.
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Y N
TREGHRS
General Meetings BRRXE
During the Year, | general meeting of the Company, being the 2018 annual REAEFEE > KRRARIBEBIT—AKREKX
general meeting of the Company, was held on 5 September 201 8. g MZZE-NFALARRETH_Z
—N\FARBBRRBEARE o
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EEpA H IR E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR AL (FE) I/
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) BIXE k& (TTEBAEE) I/
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Yu Ho Chi GIN-E = /1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MARELE I/1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoRELAE /1
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond RIS LA 1/
The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with Shareholders E=ZgRRERRSERITHE LE
and in particular, uses annual general meeting(s) or other general meetings to RRERFAFRGHEMBRRA G ER
communicate with them and encourage their participation. OB WEERRSNMAE -
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of RARRZE—RFE+TZARBRIIE
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent ZEZB8g VWicEMBEEERE " BAR
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim AIBE=RBYIFRTESANX - /F
Nam and Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond. The terms of reference of the Nomination KESZEWERER)  MABEERM
Committee is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange BISEAE REZESNBESRERK
and the Company. B R Pt AN A R A AT B ©

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code ~ IREAZRE SR BEHE HEXERFA
provisions set out in the CG Code. FrEg ey <F AR — 2K »
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The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b)
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of
such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a
matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall be
his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as
follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board, giving
the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the benefit of his
or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;
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(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
g p
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(g) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitutional
documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held | meeting for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, considering the re-
election of Directors, and reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Members HEHE HEIRE
Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) POKELE(FE) /1
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MAmEE /1
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond M BIS 5E A I/

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing
Kee and Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange'’s website and the
Company's website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.
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The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
policy on such remuneration; (b) making recommendations to the Board on the
specific remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held | meeting for reviewing the
bonus proposal for the executive Directors and senior management for the Year
and considering the salary review proposal for Directors and senior management
for the financial year ending 31 March 2020.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHE HEIRE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam (Chairman) MREEE (F/E) 1/
Mr. Lee Wing Kee ok E LA I/
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond BB LA I/

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

Senior Management's remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the
following bands:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam
and Mr. Lee Wing Kee and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Ho Chi.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and interal control systems of
the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area of
concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company's interim and annual reports.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.

LY lm\Aiﬁi

Number of

attendance
Name of Members REHA H R E
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (Chairman) RIS EE (F/E) 212
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MRFEEE 212
Mr. Lee Wing Kee $7‘}<%5‘E$ 2/2
Mr. Yu Ho Chi BSR4 2/2
In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt hREZZESEEIN BRZESITR

with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is
listed below:

— reviewed the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 and interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2018 and the related results announcements, documents and
other matters or issues raised by the external auditor;

— reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditor;

—  recommended to the Board, for the approval by the Shareholders, of the
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company; and

— discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out
annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose
term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“2019 AGM"). The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company at the 2019 AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company'’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code
and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company's orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the Company'’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditor is set
out below:

T RRAE
e

XERBERAESEET -

CREEMBER/ERNBHARALE
ERMBREERABTRERERTH

REMZEEKEERTE  BEEARRH
MEFRITHBANEIIRIE - FHAE

TEEMNFIRFETERR  BE -
by mﬁﬁﬁ%@a&i%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ—r
BIREHRFM(ME)  ARBHAR
MEEEARERIEEE -

RAFE EFRORTEENEIR
SEFLERE  AARNMTLEEAT
RIS AR A Rl 2 A R 4 118
BEE -

BB &=
RAFE BN/ BNARBZEED
s T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered 2R MR Bt BB

HK$’000

Fit

Audit services BEIZR 1,380

Non-audit services* FETAZ IR * 542

Total: i 1,922
& The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services and other advisory services. @ FEZRE EERERB S ERE R MR
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-|1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance and
full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different
commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse"”), the representative of Uni-|, was appointed as the
named Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, is the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company
Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has
taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be deposited
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board
in writing through the Company Secretary by post to Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |,
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or
via email at the contact information as provided on the website of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by Shareholders at Shareholders’
meeting

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2019 AGM will be voted by poll.
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Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and
reasonable disclosure of information to the Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following

manner:
. delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;
. publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on the

Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

. general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows of
the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management has provided a
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise
that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, The Company
has developed, approved and implemented a risk management system, which is
defined and supported by its endorsed risk management policy. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.

The Company’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes
are performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group's business
environment.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such
as revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll,
cash and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information
technology. The internal control measures are supervised by management team
including executive Directors of the Company. The management team is
responsible to identify risks and internal control deficiencies, evaluate the interal
control system of the Group from time to time and implementing additional
control measures, if necessary, to improve the internal control system. Results of
the internal assessments, internal surveys and routine inspections would be
reported to the Audit Committee, which is responsible to review the financial
information and supervise the financial reporting system and internal controls
system of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an
international accountancy firm to review the internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis. For the Year, the review covered key processes of
revenue management, expenditure management and corporate level controls of
the Group. The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company for the Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest
regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines
or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (BI&RB1), aged 55, is the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As
the founder of the Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light
Engineering Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in
March 1987 and established Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing
HK"™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in August 1987. He
is primarily responsible for leading the overall development, business strategies
and expansion of the Group. Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is a director of Prosperously
Legend Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service
management) with honours from Washington InterContinental University in the
United States through distance learning in March 2004.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. His experience includes project management, supervision and
execution for various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy is the father of Mr. Yu Ho Chi, the non-executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau”) (8I3X &), aged 53, is the chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group and became the sales and marketing manager of
Shun Hing HK in October 1995. He then became the director of Shun Hing HK
in February 2000. He is primarily responsible for directing the overall
management and business operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is a director of
Simply Grace Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing rules) of the Company .
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management
from the Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning
in February 1996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) and Hong Kong Management Association in Hong Kong in
September 1994. He was also awarded a higher diploma in building services
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November [987. He is also the
authorised signatory and technical director in the category of registered specialist
contractor (sub-register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works
contractor type E (Classes Il and IIl) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing
HK.

Mr. Lau has over 30 years in E&M engineering services industry. His experience
include business management, project management, supervision and execution
for various E&M engineering services projects.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yu Ho Chi (8IS %), aged 30, is the non-executive Director. He joined the
Group as non-executive Director on 27 June 2016. He is responsible for
providing strategic advice to the Group and acting as a member of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi graduated from the University of Melboume in Australia with a
bachelor degree of commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant
under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He
has been also a member of CPA Australia since July 2013.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi is currently working in a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange as Deputy Head of Investment Department. He was employed
by an international accounting firm, in the assurance practice and advisory
practice between 2010 and 201 6.

Mr. Yu Ho Chi is the son of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (“Mr. Lam”) (K % ), aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December [995. He also obtained a
bachelor degree of business administration with honours from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 1980.

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He was an independent
director of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He
was the deputy chief executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from
October 2001 to April 201 I, and was responsible for overseeing retail banking
business. He also held various positions in the group companies of Bank of China
Group and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, from August 1980 to April 201 [,
and was responsible for managing the business operations of the group
companies.

Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 201 |. He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council from
September 201 | to August 2015. He was an adjunct professor in the department
of finance of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from March 201 | to 28
February 2014. He was a member of Hong Kong Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012. He was a director of
Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 201 |. He was a
member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from April
2009 to March 201 1. He was a member of the Chongging Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (P B A RIEUA 15 7 2 7%
ETZEE) from January 2008 to December 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (“Mr. Lee”) (Z=7KE), aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the chairman of
Nomination Committee and member of each of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering)
from the Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in
August 1976. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
in Hong Kong since August 1983 and a member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers in the United Kingdom since December 198 1.

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held
various positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was
the deputy managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited from
July 2013 to June 2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On
Construction Company Limited from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive
director of Shui On Construction Company Limited from October 2000 to June
2013. SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited, Shui On Construction
Company Limited and Shui On Building Contractors Limited are subsidiaries of
SOCAM Development Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 983).

Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner for
Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the
Committee on Employees’ Compensation from January 2009 to December
2014. He was the chairman of Construction Workers Qualification Committee
of Construction Workers Registration Authority from May 2006 to October
2010. He was a council member of Hong Kong Construction Association from
April 2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong Construction
Association from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee of
Hong Kong Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a
member of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment,
Transport and Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a
member of Building Sub- committee of Land and Building Advisory Committee
from April 2003 to March 2007 and a member of Construction Industry Training
Authority from September 2003 to May 2007. He was the deputy honorary
treasurer of The Hong Kong Construction Association, Ltd, the chairman of the
Training Sub-committee and the vice chairman of the Training, Health and Safety
Committee of The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from 2003 to 2005
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (“Mr. To”) (A& 8), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of Audit Committee and member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. To obtained a bachelor degree of commerce accounting from Curtin
University of Technology in Western Australia in February 1996. He is currently
a certified public accountant practicing in Hong Kong. He has been a member of
CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May
1999 and May 2000, respectively.

Mr. To has been a director of RC.W (HK) CPA Limited since November 201 |,
and has been responsible for the overall operation of the firm. He has been a
director of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as Zhonglei (HK)
CPA Company Limited) since July 2009, and has been responsible for the overall
operations of the assurance and business department. He has been a director of
Edmond To CPA Limited since October 2007, and has been responsible for the
overall operation of the firm. He worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an
international accounting firm, from August 1997 to September 2001 with his last
position as senior accountant responsible for providing audit services.

Mr. To is currently an independent non-executive director of each of Wai Chun
Mining Industry Group Limited (stock code: 660), Wai Chun Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1013), Tianli Holdings Group Limited (stock code: |'17),
Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), EPI (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 689) and Courage Investment Group Limited (formerly known as
Courage Marine Group Limited) (stock code: |145), shares of all above
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of each of China Vanguard Group Limited
(now known as China Vanguard You Champion Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8156) and Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (stock code: 8413), shares of both
companies are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is a founder of Arcus
Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable institution or trust of a public
character, since August 2014 and has been appointed as its chairman since
December 2015 and resigned as both aforesaid founder and chairman on 22
March 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior management

Mr. Lee Yui (23 ), aged 47, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined
our Group in October 2006 as project manager and was promoted to project
director in April 2016. He has over 23 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project
administration and business marketing.

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in engineering (mechanical
engineering) from The University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He obtained
a bachelor of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in
November [994. He obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in October [992.

Mr. Lee has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council (UK) since
August 2003. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since January 201 6. He has been a fellow of the Institute of Plant Engineers in the
United Kingdom since February 2003. He is the authorised signatory in the
category of minor works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and IIl) with the
Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK. He is also a registered professional
engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration Board.

Mr. Tang Keng lo (B8S), aged 57, is the project director of Shun Hing HK.
He joined our Group in July 2017. He has over 30 years of experience in E&M
engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing project administration and business marketing.

Mr. Tang obtained a master degree of science in construction & real estate from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006. He obtained a
bachelor of engineering in building services engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Mr. Tang has been a member of The chartered institution of building services
engineers since July 2000 and he has been a registered engineer of the
Engineering Council (UK) since October 2000. He has been a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since November 1999 and a registered
professional engineer (building services) registered under the Engineers
Registration Board since February 2001. He is also a registered energy assessor
of Electrical and Mechanical Services Department since April 2012.

Mr. Lee Chun Mo (Z#RE), aged 50, is the senior project manager of Shun Hing
HK. He joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted
to senior project manager in April 2016. He has over 23 years of experience in
E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing project execution, operation and cost control matters.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services engineering with
first class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2005. He was awarded a higher certificate in mechanical engineering from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in November [991. He is also the authorised signatory in the
category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor works contractors
Type E (Classes |, Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Lee Foo Kwan (ZEE #), aged 47, is the project manager of Shun Hing HK.
He joined our Group in July 2002 as a project engineer and was promoted to
project manager in April 2016. He has over 20 years of experience in E&M
engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing tender
estimation and preparation, project execution, reviewing and controlling project
budgeting, coordinating with customers and other parties and carrying out design
and design verification works.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee obtained a master degree of science in project management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2008. He obtained a bachelor
degree of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1996. He is currently a registered
professional engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration
Board. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since
June 2011, a member of The Institution of Mechanical Engineers in the United
Kingdom since January 2011, a member of American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc. since January 2011 and a
member of the Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers in Hong Kong
since October 201 1. He is also the authorised signatory in the category of minor
works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings
Department for Shun Hing HK.

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (BRJ&E ), aged 32, is the financial controller of our Group. He
joined our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He is primarily
responsible for managing the financial operations and accounting functions of our
Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in
professional accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
2010.

Mr. Chan has over 8 years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior
to joining our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a
manager in the assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit
services. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (% $8#8) aged 55, was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 9 May 2016. Mr. Tse is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Tse is currently the company secretary of several companies listed
on the Main Board and the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is also an executive
director of a local professional firm providing regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and corporate secretarial services to listed and unlisted corporations.
Mr. Tse has more than 25 years’ experience in handling listed company secretarial
and compliance related matters.
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development, and also the Group’s performance during
the Year are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to |5 of this annual report. No important event affecting
the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.

The details of key performance indicators are shown in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to |5 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are also discussed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) on pages 16 to
31 of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group's operations, many of which are
beyond the Group's control, including but not limited to those relating to the
business and the industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the
following:

. the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each project, which
in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to be involved

. the Group's revenue is derived from E&M engineering services projects,
which are non-recurrent in nature, and the Group may achieve lower-than-
expected revenue if it fails to maintain continuity of its order book for its
new projects

o the Group relies on its subcontractors to deliver quality works and
complete the Group's projects. Any delay or defects on their part would
adversely affect the Group’s operations and financial results

e the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry.
Increased competition with market participants may lead to lower profit
margins and loss of market share.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The ESG Report of the Company for the Year contained the information
required under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules is set out on pages 16 to 3| of
this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the
Group.

Further discussion on the compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
also contained in ESG Report on pages |6 to 31 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of the
Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to
employees and emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences
to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

Further discussion on the key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are also contained in ESG Report on pages 16 to 31 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 82.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.4 cents per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2019 to be payable to the
Shareholders on Monday, 30 September 2019 to those Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 4 September 2019.
The payment of final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the 2019 AGM to be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019.
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made approximately HK$ 14,000 charitable
donations (2018: HK$26,000).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 23 August 2019 to Wednesday, 28 August 2019, both
days inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (and such address will be changed to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effect from || July 2019) for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m on Thursday, 22 August 2019.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 3 September 2019 to Wednesday, 4 September 2019, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (and
such address will be changed to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong with effect from || July 2019) for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 2 September 2019.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 3| March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to approximately HK$9 I,653,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set out in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1) (a) of
the Companies Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page |68 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. Lau Man Ching and Mr. Yu
Ho Chi will retire by rotation at the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 6 December 2016 for a term of three years commencing from 3
January 2017, being the Listing Date. Either party has the right to terminate the
service agreement by giving not less than six months” written notice to the other

party.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed the letter of appointment issued by the Company on 6
December 2016 for a term of three years commencing from 3 January 2017,
being the Listing Date. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of
appointment by giving not less than three months' written notice to the other

party.
None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has a

service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that
those related party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at 3| March 2019 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, are set out below:

EERBETBRAERRGO RIEHR
BREOHNERRARE
RZE-AF=A=+—"H BFEER
RNAEEEITHA BRANA 8 3k (7] B
EE(EE REBERBEERGIZEXVER) &
f&fn - AERD REEZS - HERE
BAEREAEIEGEXVEET RSN EBAE
MEARRB KRBT (BIEREREES
KERE BB 5% SRR B (E AR Rk
ENERRAE) ERIRE - IIRE
BENHEIRGIFE2EBEZ TR ZIE
Bl S R MR IR R - HBREE
EFRIRTERESSOAEAT ¢

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued share

shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FriE AT
Name of Directors Capacity Short position PR/ BRITRA Notes
EEng 514 HE/ KR HERHORE BRESL (b
Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another Long position 246,000,000 61.50 l,3
R person/Interest of controlled 1A
corporations
EE—ZATHERFAL
B/ R RS
Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another Long position 54,000,000 13.50 23
ZINF person/Interest of controlled 1A
corporations

EE—ZATHERRAN
s/ RS
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Notes:

Theses 246,000,000 Shares are held through Prosperously Legend Limited (*‘Prosperously Legend”),
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy.

2, Theses 54,000,000 Shares are held through Simply Grace Limited (“Simply Grace™), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching.

3. On 7 July 2016, Mr. Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert
confirmation, whereby they confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been
actively cooperating with one another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and
concerted action on all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member

company within the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the
Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 3| March 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in
shares and underlying shares of Company as follows:

FTERRRBRORABERDFHE
BmRAR

RZTE-NF=A=1t—H ' AQRFR
BESMBPERIIFEBHEFENTE
BREZMINE  BREZERARRRS
TTHRABMERS - THBRREMNGR
N AR AR B R S AR B AL R Y
HEERSORBAT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued share

shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FriE AT
Name Capacity Short position PR/ BRITRAE Notes
L 514 HR/ KR HERHRE BREDL (b
Prosperously Legend Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50
BEaSHAA e
Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50 2
EREBA iR
Notes: B &E

Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Choy.

2. Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 3|
March 2019.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6
December 2016. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to full time or part time employee, Directors (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Directors), any supplier,
any customer, any service provider, any Shareholder, any adviser or consultant of
the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue at the time dealings in
the Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 Shares,
unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which must
not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents
| 0% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

(2)  The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
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The subscription price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares
on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the Share.

an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or
times during the option period (which shall not be more than |0 years
from the offer date of that option) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of
consideration for the grant.

the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of
business on the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years
after the adoption date, i.e. 6 December 201 6.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option

Scheme since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, Mr. Lau Man Ching, Prosperously Legend and Simply
Grace (together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the deed of non-
competition on 6 December 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition
Undertaking”) in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its
subsidiaries from time to time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly
and severally undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure
that none of their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group) shall, during the period that (a) the Shares remain listed on the Stock
Exchange; and (b) either the Covenantors and their respective close associates
(other than members of the Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to
exercise, or control the exercise of, not less than 30% of the voting power at
general meetings of the Company; or (c) any of the Covenantors or their
respective close associates remains as a director of any member of the Group,
directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in conjunction with, on behalf
of, or through any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on,
participate or be interested, engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be
involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or may compete,
with the business of the Group or undertaking and any other new business which
the Group may undertake from time to time after the listing of the Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with the
terms of Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual declarations and
made reasonable enquiry and confirmed the compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-Competition Undertaking by the Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report and also Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the Year.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 3|1 March 2019 are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group as at 3| March 2019 are set out in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$9.2 million (2018: HK$ 2.1 million). As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a
facility agreement entered into with a bank with a facility limit of approximately
HK$54.0 million with the following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In
case of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the
Group should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr. Yu is not
entitled to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank |4
days in advance.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$30.0 million. The Company had made
undertakings relating to certain performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders, namely Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau, pursuant to the facility agreement
including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the
largest shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of the Company. The facility
agreement remains effective as at the date of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 20.0%
and 66.7% of the Group's total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 2.1% and 18.9% of the total direct costs of the
Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholder (which to the

knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of
its employees based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority.
The Group will review its remuneration package annually. The Group provides a
defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the
Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company'’s ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Changes in Directors’ information since the date of the 2018-19 interim report
of the Company are set out below:

—  Director's remuneration of Mr. Yu Cheung Choy, executive Director and
chairman of the Board, has been revised to HK$2,496,000.00 per annum
with effect from | April 2019; and

—  Director’s remuneration of Mr. Lau Man Ching, executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company, has been revised to HK$2,088,000
per annum with effect from | April 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date hereof, there were no substantial changes
to the Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l)
of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. To Yan Ming Edmond (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam
and Mr. Lee Wing Kee and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Ho Chi.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2019 AGM.

By order of the Board
SH Group (Holdings) Limited
Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 82 to |67, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

RREEZEE

BARELEE

s R FEERBRMNEXHE
RAHAREEVBERRNBARAE
ENER FUEFREERMBTBE
RAEVBHRREEABEREETRIE
e B TEHELERREREBNE
B o

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ARBEATRECTEEBRELSER AN

Revenue recognition for engineering service contracts and
contract assets/liabilities

IRBRBENBBRARGHNEE EF

We identified the recognition of revenue for engineering service
contracts and contract assets/contract liabilities as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgement and estimates by management in
determining the stage of completion and the budget costs of
engineering service contracts in progress.
KMEBRIIRRBANUERARANEE ANEER
RREZEE REAAEEEBREERIHRRETHIRE
ARTEE KR TR B R AR 7 2 4F I I K2 (b5t

The contract revenue generated from engineering service contracts
amounting to HK$396,348,000 was recognised in the profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2019. As disclosed in note |6 to
the consolidated financial statements, the carrying amounts of
contract assets and contract liabilities were HK$143,980,000 and
HK$1 1,071,000 respectively.
TERBEOEEN A HIKE39634800 B TREE-F
—NE=ZA=T—"BLFEERMER - WS M BRKH
IR E AHNEERANEBEENEREED A
143,980,000 7 7T & 11,071,000 JT, °
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
engineering service contracts and contract assets/liabilities
included:
BMEIRRBEORGERENEE BENER
B

. understanding and evaluating management's process
in estimation of the contract revenue, budget cost
and determination of completion status of the
engineering service contracts;
TEEHEEEEGAAONKE  BERAR
BEIRERBE KT TARENRE

. agreeing the total contract value to the contracts and
variation orders (if any), agreements or other
correspondence, on a sample basis;
HAWhITREFTENA)  HRH bR
AMZERENEE (RMEEE)

. evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated total

contract costs by assessing the status of completion
of the respective engineering service contracts, and
comparing the actual costs incurred against
management’s estimation and the profit margin of
other similar projects, on a sample basis;
BB EEEIRERBE AT IRE - LK
FTEE R BRRAANEE IR Em b st R E AU
HEMFBEEX - WS G AWK EER
B



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RREEZEER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M XA

BRELSEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ARBEATRECTEEBRELSER AN

The Group recognised contract revenue, direct costs and contract
assets/contract liabilities by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity using the input method at the end of each
reporting period. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management exercises judgements in estimating the
total contract costs, which are prepared by the management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by the major
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of
the management. Changes in estimates or the actual outcome will
affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/liabilities with the
corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.
EEEZ2EZREYPREARNERENSLEB T TR
BRAaWE  BEREARAHNEE SHBE - RS
M mRMEAE - BEE IR GRS ORARERH
B ARFE D HEREBREESNEBERARE  HER
BN RENREUAREEENERNER - G E2HE
BRERKTEANEE BBENRESE AR R KK S
R/ EEKROEEHE -

o evaluating the reasonableness of percentage of
completion of engineering service contracts by:
BRNTEFFHEIERBENTIADLLH
/_\IEIH_: .
=

— checking to the Group's internal progress

report as well as other supporting documents
including the certificates issued to the
subcontractors, invoices issued by suppliers/
vendors and their correspondences or other
documents issued before and subsequent to
year end date to evaluate the progress of the
respective projects, on a sample basis;
e BEEEAMEEREREMEBERNX
o BRAXAZEHHANES  HE
BB ANBEREREBARNFLA
HART& h A M E A X - ARHESIRB®
EE (REREE)

—  discussing with the management of the Group
to understand the status of respective
engineering service contracts, and to evaluate
the reasonableness of contract costs recognised
based on the size and duration of the projects,
on a sample basis; and
B OEREEREEETIWNAERRESTRE
ARG E X MR - WERIA B B RR N
EHMEF A ERRAS QNG R (R
HE): &

— comparing the percentage of completion of
engineering service contracts calculated based
on costs incurred at the end of the reporting
period against that calculated based on external
surveyors’ certifications, and investigating any
significant differences identified.
HBEERNBERREEERAAENTE
RBENTTADLBERKAIINEEE
FRETEN I ERBEHNTIADL -
WHHABERNERBEAZRETRAE -

. checking the accuracy of contract assets/liabilities by
agreeing the amount of progress billings to invoices
issued to customers, on a sample basis.
BRMEREERNREREEFNERNT
B REANEE/BENERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RREZEER

HRELSEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREYMITRECTEERARELSEHZARN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

EZRUREARSHNEERETE

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables and contract assets to the Group'’s consolidated financial
position and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.
BMEBRNESRUFERSNEEREBEN G AERELS
B RAREZRUFBARAVEEY BRELZRSMBMNR
MEZMALRFE SRERHSHRESREFEREL
BERMCEEER((BHMEEER DM RIBHENERE
fl&t

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's trade receivables and contract
assets amounting to HK$56,155,000 and HK$143,980,000
respectively. As disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised impairment loss allowance of
trade receivables and contract assets of HK$367,000 and
HK$2,444,000 respectively for the year and the Group's lifetime ECL
on trade receivables and contract assets amounted to HK$367,000
and HK$2,444,000 respectively as at 31 March 2019.
RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H BEXEEFERRFERELHE
E 5 Bll /356,155,000 7% 7T & 143,980,000 7T o # A 4R & B 75 ¥R
RMFEOMMKRE - EEERFADFIEREZHEKFARE
#)EERE R 1B R 36700078 7T & 2,44400087C - TR —F
—NE=A=1+—H8 BEEENESRKFBERENEEELH
TEH(E B B89 Bl A 367,000 45 7T & 2,444,000 77T
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables and contract assets included:
BHMERMEZREKRANREOEE ZRENEHIE
o B

o Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the impairment loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEBEGHESRURFTBRANEEL
B B R B R 0 = BRI

o Testing the accuracy of trade receivables ageing
analysis as at | April 2018 and 31 March 2019, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant sales invoices;
BB EELIE R RAARH SRR
R -_T-NFOA-—BER-FT—NLF=A
=t —BANE S RUGIRRRE D7 60 2B R 1
TR,



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

RREEZEER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M XA

BRELSEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ARBEATRECTEEBRELSER AN

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,

management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of

trade receivables and contract assets individually. The assessment is

based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or

past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss rates are

based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of

the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

IR A M BERRMT4FERE - EEEEEEEMNGHES
RUEFIEREHNEENEHBRHEEBERESE - SHEDENA
EEFHAIEETR Rk - BREE R JEEAMRE - 7
SAEEXDERBEBARMFHPRNELBRENE - IR
IERTIEIEE M T AR o

. Challenging management'’s basis and judgement in
determining impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at | April 2018 and
31 March 2019, including their identification of credit
impaired balances, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied to each customer (with reference to the
historical default rates and forward-looking
information including subsequent settlement pattem
of each customer); and
EREEEAEBEEN T \FHA-—BAE=
E-NF=ZA=T—"HEZFRUFAIREHE
ERREBERERTRANELERHE - 8
EREHEERELESRNBINARERNRER
PohrtBRREE (K2 BEROXRNATE
HENBREEFPNHREERA) &

o Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
AR A M SRR TR EB@E 5 EWEIE
REHEERBETHERE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEEREREMAEERAR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

For the year ended 3| March
BE-A=T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FERT TET
Revenue Wz 5 396,348 367,919
Direct costs BEKAN (348,704) (305,588)
Gross profit E X 47 644 62,331
Other income Hib A 7 1,324 657
Other gain H s 7 979 —
Impairment loss allowance of BIRRFIEREHNEE
trade receivables and contract assets BIEEER A (2,811) —
Administrative expenses THF X (19,463) (19,400)
Finance costs BhE B 8 (396) (410)
Profit before taxation R 5 A S5 A 9 27,277 43,178
Income tax expense PSR 10 (4,580) (7,592)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMNREEWRABRE
for the year 22,697 35,586
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents) EHAR GBI I 5.7 8.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R 3R

As at 31 March 2019
RZE-N1$=A=+—-H

As at 3| March

R=B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET THT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property and equipment IEYS &L 13 21,665 22,121
Deposits ®e 15 2,654 2,036
Debt instrument at amortised cost AT RNEK TR 18 2,155 —
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABERH
profit or loss TREE 19 10,434 —
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITERX 20 — 31,112
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 24 232 13
37,140 55,282
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables =l 14 56,155 23,172
Other receivables, deposits HMERIE - Ze Kk
and prepayments TEfTFRIE 15 3,685 38,954
Contract assets AREE 16 143,980 —
Amounts due from customers JERE PG A TIZENRIA
for contract work |7 — 39,217
Tax recoverable G Bk R 3,723 —
Short term bank deposits REESRITER 20 28,000 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRE S 20 71,315 158,911
306,858 260,254
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B RNFIERENER 21 36,683 17,825
Other payables and accrued charges H b R K BT B 22 49,764 38,992
Contract liabilities BRAE 16 11,071 —
Amounts due to customers ERNEPE&ATIIERIE
for contract work |7 — 16,406
Tax payable JERTHE IR — 1,934
Bank borrowings RITENK 23 9,164 12,057
106,682 87214
Net current assets REBEERE 200,176 173,040
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARS 237,316 228,322

F3R2018-19/ IBEEE (=) AR AR 83



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

As at 31 March 2019
R=ZE-NF=A=1+—H

As at 3| March

R=BR=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P EE FTHET FHET
Non-current liability FRBEME
Provisions b 25 374 280
Net assets BEZEE 236,942 228,042
Capital and reserves EXKRE
Share capital A& 2K 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves ki 232,942 224,042
Equity attributable to owners AAREE ABGERS
of the Company 236,942 228,042

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to |67 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2019 and are signed
on its behalf by:

ERNEICTE M EHE G T B HER
—E-NAFERNA-tNEBEESSIE
ME#ETE YR TIESRREETS
RE

Yu Cheung Choy
RN
DIRECTOR
BE
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Lau Man Ching
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBEHR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium  reserve® profits Total
Hit
A ROEE EEND  REEF #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET THERT FHET THBT FTHET
At | April 2017 R=ZE—tFMNA—H 4,000 83223 5,058 100,175 192,456
Profit and total comprehensive income & @ FI| &
for the year FEBALTE — — — 35,586 35,586
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\E=ZA=+— 4,000 83,223 5,058 135,761 228,042
Adjustments (Note 2) T (i 2) — — — (4,997) (4.997)
At | April 2018 (restated) RN_ZE—-N\FHA—H
(&&E5) 4,000 83223 5,058 130,764 223,045
Profit and total comprehensive income & @ Fl| &
for the year ZHERABLE — — — 22,697 22,697
Dividends recognised as distribution BRAED KIS
(Note 12) (ME 12) = = — (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ—N%F
=A=+—H 4,000 83223 5,058 144661 236,942
Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of (i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, Mizk : EtfEEEO0EEEAEENRFRE(EER2E

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (‘Triumph Legend"”) to acquire equity

interest in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK") and issue of shares by the

Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“Blissful
Choice”); and (ii) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as

deemed contributions from shareholders.

Triumph Legend Ltd ([ Triumph Legend ) £ U & IE
ERETRER AR ([NEREE ) REMET
f& 19 & 78 A ] 73 Y2 Triumph Legend % Blissful
Choice Limited ([ Blissful Choice ]) % 4 i % 17 A%
)+ B (i) R N EERIEIL AR RRERR
& 1% 794,800,000 8 TLAU B R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN Do~ —§
:215{ (=] Iﬁ%l)lb%%
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

For the year ended 3| March
BE-A=T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation [ 75 Bl Y 1) 27,277 43,178
Adjustments for: AT R IBTGEL -
Depreciation of property and equipment MERREITE 1,393 1,529
Impairment loss allowance of trade receivables B RWSIBREHERE
and contract assets BIEEER A 2811 —
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BEATEFABSZNEREE
through profit or loss NSRIEL G (979) —
Bank interest income RITHLBHA (921) (495)
Interest income from debt instrument at KA IREE SR ANT BR R ETS T A
amortised cost B B M A (72) -
Dividend income from insurance policy KEREBHREKA (60) (59)
Dividend income from financial assets REEBRAFEFABRN
at fair value through profit or loss TREENREWKA (215) =
Finance costs BEKA 396 410
Operating cash flows before movements LEESBIFKEHRESNE
in working capital 29,630 44,563
Changes in amounts due from/to customers Y ENEFAXTRERE
for contract work, net BE)FER — 26,045
Increase in trade receivables B 5 WK N (35.817) (2915)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HEEWFRIE - e RIBAFIA
prepayments by (1,663) (3359)
Increase in contract assets BRIEEEM (66,141) —
Increase (decrease) in trade and bills payables =) NN ES
18840 Gl >) 18,858 (1,223)
Increase in other payables and accrued charges H{th fE A~ 5RIE K FE 5T & R 1 0 13,368 5436
Decrease in contract liabilities BREBERD (15,547) —
Increase (decrease) in provisions R o0 Ok 2>) 94 (77)
Cash (used in) generated from operations & () FiER & (57,218) 68,470
Income tax paid EFRET (9.468) (6,280)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ReEFTH (A FBREESE (66,686) 62,190
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

For the year ended 3| March
BE-A=T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Bank interest received ERERTITAE 719 495
Dividend received from financial assets REEBRATFEFAERERN
at fair value through profit or loss TREENDRIKRE 167 -
Placement of short term bank deposits 7 U2 BRER1TIE X (28,000) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits I BFRITFER 31,112 76
Purchase of debt instrument at amortised cost BELREEK AT RMNER LA (2,155) =
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through BERATET ABRD
profit or loss TREE (9,455) —
Purchase of property and equipment BEMERF (1,209) (793)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMARS TR (8,821) (222)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Dividends paid B E (8,800) -
Interest paid ERFLE (396) (410)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITIER (2,893) (2906)
Net cash used in financing activities BE T FrRESRE (12,089) (3316)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents IR &R B EZEY G 2)
B (87,596) 58,652
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FURE MRS EED 158,911 100,259
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRRESEEY
represented by bank balances and cash IRTESR RS 71,315 158911
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hz-

88

Z-NEZR=T—HILERE

GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company’) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 9 May 2016.
The addresses of the Company’s registered office and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY -1 111, Cayman Islands and Units 603—606, 6/F., Tower
I, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is
Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend”), which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and wholly owned by Mr.
Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr. Yu"), who is also the chairman of the Board and
executive Director of the Company. The Company's shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange™) on 3 January 2017.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments and an
interpretation to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (‘“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

ERFTEEMBRELEA(E
BRMBHREED ) REETE

REECBEERNHTEBYK
BEEAREBITE
RAFE  AEECDBEREANUT
HEBEFAE ((EESFEIA
g ) BRI BB SR E £
KEAERT A Nk i

BRMBHRERAEIT SRIA
BRABREER REZFRONRER
Z15% il
BE(ARMBRE  MERBRENRE

REZEE)-2E

A
a
A
a

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

EN%

BT R & DD BERR TS

F2% (BFTA) M EREE

BT R & EREAYBREER

EXSACHEY E45RBANR—H
ERE AN BREER
FIREBIA

REGENENTE  (EARBRERLES

LHES) “E-PERCER
FRBNEEY
E#—45

BEGIENE0%  REVEES

Except as described below, the application of the amendments and an
interpretation to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.1 HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related amendments for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS |5 superseded HKAS |8 Revenue, HKAS I|
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

BT X &SN REEEBES
B S ERNE AT AN S 2 L R
AEBAFE SBEFENIER
BRMRAR S ZEEE W BREK
PRl WBEEEATE -

21 BB EREERE 55K
BEFAL8M
AEERAFREERERA
BB RELRE ISHRAKE
EFEAAA Kz R EIEREE
Rl BRI EERIEIS
FRERMREEETERZE I8
SRz BAGFTERE I
SREZEA A RAERRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2.

90

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

2.1

HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, | April 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at | April
2018 and has used the practical expedient for all contract
modifications that occurred before the date of initial application, the
aggregate effect of all of the modifications was reflected at the date
of initial application. Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 8 Revenue and HKAS || Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

0 Supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation
and air-conditioning system (“MVAC system”)

e Supply, installation and maintenance of low voltage electrical
system

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS |5 are
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)
2.1 HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 5

The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS |5
on retained profits at | April 2018.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

2. ER#HIERAMBREEN(EH
BMBEREED ) REMBITX
(#%&)
AEECBREERNHTEBHS
REEARHIETAR(E)

21 BB BEHREERZE 55K
BEFEHTIM S ()
BXEREEYEREER
FEISHEEMNTERE
TREMBEZEE B IER
EEBFISHFEHR TN
FNA—HRBEFNTE -

Impact of adopting
HKFRS |5

at | April 2018
R=-Z—\F
HA—B&R#
BRMBEREER
BISHMETE
HK$’000

TET

Retained profits R EF

Engineering services contracts recognised over time VRS I HEAH) TR RFE & 4 (5,985)

Tax effects RIS 2

988

Impact at | April 2018 RZZE—N\FHA—BHTE (4997)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at | April 2018. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

R-ZZ—N\FWHAH—-BRE
BMBRRNRFTEER TR
WA - MEBRELX
FENMIIIAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (Cont'd)

2.1 HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

2.

ERFIEEBMBEREERN(H

BHEREER ) REBFTR

()

REECRAHAERNFIEBHE

REERRHEMBITR(E)

2.1 BEUBHREGERE 55K
BEFA Wz (&)
BRERBEBMGHREE

N

2l
)

(Cont'd) FISHEENTERE (&
Carrying amounts
previously Carrying amounts
reported at under HKFRS 15
31 March 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement at | April 2018*
R=B-N\%§
BEAR A—H
—B-N\F REFBHHK
=ZA=t-H HERERE 155
RENREE ENOE Ly AR {E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THER TEx TR THET
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables EO) L6 (b) 3,172 (2467) - 20,705
Other receivables, deposits Hib IR « Ze K
and prepayments B0 © 38954 (36,968) — 1,986
Contract assets BHEE @), (), (d) = 76,185 4098 80283
Amounts due from customers for EREF AN IERE
contract work @ 39.217 (39.217) = =
Current liabilities nEBAE
Other payables and accrued charges Hibh R L T ER (b) 38992 (2,596) — 36,39
Contract liabilities BHEE (), (@) — 16,535 10,083 26618
Amounts due to customers EREFatIERE
for contract work (b) 16,406 (16,406) = =
Tax payable fERFiE (d) 1934 — (988) 946
Capital and reserves BEARRE
Reserves G (d) 224042 — (4997) 219,045

*

HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

2.1

HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Cont'd)

Notes:

(@) At | April 2018, HK$39,217,000 of amounts due from customers for contract work

were reclassified to contract assets.

(b) At | April 2018, HK$ 13,939,000 of amounts due to customers for contract work and
HK$2,596,000 of other payables and accrued charges were reclassified to contract
liabilities. At | April 2018, HK$2,467,000 of trade receivables were eliminated against

amounts due to customers for contract work under HKFRS 15.

(o) At | April 2018, retention receivables of HK$36,968,000 arising from the construction
contracts are conditional on the satisfaction of the quality of construction work
performed by the Group over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts, and
such balance was reclassified from other receivables, deposits and prepayments to

contract assets.

(d) In order to faithfully represent the depiction of the Group's performance in
transferring control of good or services promised to its customer, the Group would
adopt input method to measure its progress by reference to the actual costs incurred
relative to the total expected costs upon initial application of HKFRS 15 on | April
2018. HK$4,997,000 was adjusted to opening retained profits, with the corresponding
adjustments of HK$4,098,000 and HK$10,083,000 to contract assets and contract
liabilities, respectively and decrease in tax payable by HK$988,000 as a result of these
adjustments. Previously, under HKAS 18, the Group'’s revenue from engineering
service contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion at the end of each
reporting period determined with reference to surveys of work performed to date
relative to the total contract revenue as the directors of the Company considered

such method measured reliably the engineering services performed.

2.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

BRI EEMBRELEA(E
BMBHRELER ) REBIT AR

(%)

FEEERFEROFTERBYE
BEERREBIT AR (&)

2.1

BB EHEERE 155K
BEF AR ()
BREREEHEHEER

FISHEENTERE (B)
GEE

N

(@) R=ZZFE—N\FHNA—QA  BRE
F A #) T2 57839,217,0007% 7T
EMDERENERE -

b)) RKR=ET-—N\FMA—B EHE
F & #) T2 3% 78 13,939,000 7T
REfh B RIE R EGE R
2,596,000 TTEF N BREE LA
B -RZE—N\EWA—B &
5 FEURFRIA 2,467,000 78 TR AR &
BB RS ERE 155 A B
BEAKNIRRIBYHEE -

© R=ZZFE—N\FMA—RH  BE4
A9 EE AE 9 FE U IR [E & 36,968,000
BLARFAEEREHEIRE
THAR#EITRETIZE RiEMR%
FAERE « ZEEHRNE U
FIE - HERBENRBEEFHE
BAWEE -

(d AUNBERBASEREEZFEER
FHEERRRBIEREOEL
AEBBEAR-_ZT—/\ENA—AR
BAREZESTEHRELERE 5
SRie 2 RERE S KA RB 1A
RAKLE - AR LT EH
HE o ARZZAE - 4997000
BB ARZHRBER - I
2 Bl #8 FE #8 24,098,000 7T K&
10083000 B TLEANEERE
RBME - i EMTIER 2 988,000
PETT o LAE - IRIEE S 2R
F 185 - AEBE KB TIRRBE
NSRS RESH RS EZRY
RBENREESBITIIEE
METHTELIRETURR R
HAENRREEREZIT AR
St ERTEITH TIZRE -
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year (Cont'd)

2.1 HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on

the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|

March 2019, its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows for

the current year for each of the line items affected. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

R EEMBRELEA(E
BMBHRELER ) REBEIT AR

(%)

AEECBREERNHTTEBHS
REEARHIETAR(E)
21 BB EREERE 55K

BEFA MM ()
&R B S B s 8
£ ISHEANTERE (8)
TR B B R R
RS ISEHAEEN -
—hAE=A=t+-BmEa
BBRORE - HRAEE M
BABSRAMSERAR
REARERERTRRY
EHMIAENPE - fim
BEREYENMSIER -

HESUMBRRRNZE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
I &R
BERMB®RE
RIS 155
Fr 28 R NEHE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
P EE THET FiEr TERT
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 FIR (b) 56,155" 2260 58415
Other receivables, deposits HibpEW s « B4
and prepayments RIERTFKIE (b) 3,685 47237 50922
Contract assets BRIEE @), (b) 143980%  (143,980) —
Amounts due from customers FEWE P AN TIEIA
for contract work (a), (b) — 106,570 106,570
Tax recoverable EE{EEhE (), (b) 3,723 24 3747
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued charges  EfbfERTFIB K fEZT & (b) 49,764 5471 55,235
Contract liabilities BHAE @), (b) 11,071 (11,071) —
Amounts due to customers ENREALTERE
for contract work (@), (b) — 17833 17,833
Capital and reserves ERKHE
Reserves i @), (b) 232,942 (122) 232,820
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2. JERIESIKHRE LR (E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd) BEHEREED ) REBFT X
(%)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the KEECREERNEFITERBUIE
current year (Cont'd) BEERREBIT AR (&)
2.1 HKFRS I5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd) 2.1 B EIHEERE |55
BEF AR ()
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 ENEES U ey
(Contd) FISHKELNTEMRE (F)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HatEzREM2EmKA
comprehensive income TPEE
Amounts
without

application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15

I e A

BERPBRE

RS 155

2% A HeHE

Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BT FERT FTEx TET

Revenue ez @ 396,348 (4002) 372346
Direct costs BEEMAR (a) (348,704) 17,871 (330,833)
Profit before taxation BR%E A A (a) 27,277* (6,131 21,146
Income tax expense FTie#if (a) (4,580) 1,012 (3,568)
Profit for the year £ RS F @ 22,697* 5,119) 17,578
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
—NEZR=t—RLFE

BE-T

2.

96

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

2.1 HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)

BRI EEMBRELEA(E
EAMBREER ) REBITA

(%)

REECRBERNHTEBYE
BELNREBIT A (B)
21 BEHMBHEERE ISR

BEF &K ()
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 5 ENEES R e
(Cont'd) FISREENZERE (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HiEESHERERTHNEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments* HKFRS 15
WEER
BRUBEE
ERIZ 155
28 AR HeH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i T TER BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before taxation Bﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬂ (a) 27277 6131) 21,146
Increase in trade receivables B S ez IaEm (b) (35817 207 (35,610)
Increase in other receivables, HMEWTIE  1e REM
deposits and prepayments Ty\lﬁi“j}ﬂ (b) (1,663) (10,269) (11932)
Increase in contract assets BHBEEM @), (b) (66,141)* 66,141 -
Changes in amounts due from/to EH&Z/J’E NEFA#IEFIE
customers for contract work, net /%E (@), (b) - (68,370) (68,370)
Increase in other payables and J’M‘ﬁ I8 N FEAT 2 AN
accrued charges (b) 13,368 2875 16243
Decrease in contract liabilities EHaBERD (a), (b) (15,547) 5,547 -

*

®)

The amounts in this column exclude the corresponding effect from the application of
HKFRS 9 as at 31 March 2019.

The amounts include the adjustment of impairment loss allowance of trade
receivables and contract assets of HK$367,000 and HK$2,444,000 respectively upon
the application of HKFRS 9.

The adjustments are arising from the different bases of measuring the stage of
completion at the end of the reporting period under HKAS 8 and HKFRS 5.

Without application of HKFRS 15, the contract assets under HKFRS 15 will be
reclassified as amounts due from customers for contract work and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments (for retention receivables) under HKAS 18, and the
contract liabilities under HKFRS |5 will be reclassified as amounts due to customers
for contract work and other payables and accrued charges under HKAS 8. The
trade receivables will be reinstated with amounts due to customers for contract work
for HKAS 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for () the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and
other items (for example, contract assets) and (3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
I April 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as
at | April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 3|
March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at | April 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2.

98

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Cont'd)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the Group's
financial assets as at | April 2018 based on the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date. Trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS [5. The measurement categories for all financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group as at | April 2018 remain the
same upon the application of HKFRS 9.

As at | April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and
assessed the Group's existing financial assets and contract assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9 and considered the application of ECL
model has no material impact to the financial position of the Group
as at | April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments and
an interpretation to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS |7

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS |
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases!
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

or after the beginning of the

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on

first annual period beginning on or after | January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the

directors of the Company

anticipate that the application of all other new

and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no material

impact on the consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS [6
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS |5 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements
relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 6, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS
|6 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$4,443,000 as disclosed in note 33. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid
of HK$733,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS |7
applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group'’s annual period beginning
on | April 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period (as explained in the accounting
policies below) and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

J Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS |5, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group'’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont'd)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to | April 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from engineering service contracts is based on the stage of
completion at the end of each reporting period. The percentage of
completion is determined using methods that measure reliably the work
performed. The method used is with reference to surveys of work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract revenue.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Engineering service contracts

Where the outcome of an engineering service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of each reporting period,
measured based on the proportion that revenue recognised with reference
to surveys of work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract revenue. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Revenue recognition (prior to | April 2018) (Cont'd)

Engineering service contracts (Cont'd)

Where the outcome of an engineering service contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract work. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under trade receivables.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

EXRSTEHEE)
WERR(R=F—-\FmA—HA)
(#&)

TERREEX (&)

AR BEF] SEMB A AT TAZ IRFS A A9RY
AR AIaHKERA A IR E R
EELA KRR TIARER - BHIK
AREELREBRRA/ZHL -

4R & IR AN B Al gEB h A KUK
=iy - RHEBEARER /X -

fii3e 5 EE R & KR A IS FERE
HIR C R B 1R R o [ 50R - B
BHEIIIERIKEF & HTER
e REREKBRBHESELENS
HIRKZS DN E RERR R B FERR B 18
MEHME - AL JIERA
BEFAHNIRERAE - BT T2
FHREERP HARTHFKIEL
ST AR A MR KR A E 5 WK
15 o

E &3
BEI&EB(BEFERREESL
PRI m MRS AR TT A i Ry
B RET) RKARER R
FERRFRERE(WA)FIRK -

BEMITE TR E A £ A FH
NESOEBERAMHRIER - B
ST RERFES  RIREER
FENENRERERARIELEE -
WIATRHREAEE AR GFT A -

BENERIREEBEEERZ
HEERF/ARREE R E
REER - MELRBEBEEAHLEL
REAMEHMEAIREREERIR
ZIBEBEHE SR EERE(E
M ERRTE - WHERNERA -

F3R 2018-19 / IBEE E (%) AR AR 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable
amount of tangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Deposits in life insurance policies

Since | April 2018, deposits in life insurance policies are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost adjusted for interest
income and service charges, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS |5 since | April 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont'd)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.

0]

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont'd)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gain” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
contract assets, debt instrument at amortised cost, other receivables and
deposits, pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
|2-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within |2 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and

contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or intemal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

5 existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

5 an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(if)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(i)  Credit impaired financial assets (Cont'd)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

116 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED / Annual Report 2018-19

BEXEFTHEE)
SRMIA(E)
EHMEE (&)
& @A E A (RIEH 2 89388 FE
FEBB IR EERE 955 18) ()
iy EERESBREEE)
© BRAHNERARELE
FAHBE KR A
ZEENREAIER A
FERAE KRBT
ERATTEREZER
EIESE

(d) ERABAERESE
TTEMMEER =X

(e) RHHZRMBRHEHZ
ERMEERERRMY

(iv) HEHBUR
fin B E R REF AR
=N 2 B E PR U E A]
Be - BlanE F HBEBERSID
EARERFR  SgtZ5
JEWFKIBEMS EHESFEE
BERBRE(UARREEE
"RE) - BIASE2MESR
BE HEEZEEZEER(E
E)& EMESREEDN
BEASE 2 WEREFEE
oR AT o S 1 Ak BUH T
REH - EREZWERE
= NTERR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018)
(Cont'd)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of trade receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
past credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on trade receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and accrued charges and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) as
defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sickness allowance) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Leasing (Cont'd)
Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the income tax expense currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for each engineering
service contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted engineering service
costs are prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts
to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact
on the profit or loss recognised in each period.

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related
receivables reflect the management’s best estimate of each contract’s
outcome and stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of a
number of estimates. This includes the assessment of the profitability of
on-going engineering service contracts. For more complex contracts in
particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty. Notwithstanding that the management
frequently reviews and revises the estimates of both the estimated revenue
and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in estimates or the
actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/liabilities
with the corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)
Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets

ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. The
assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information. The loss
allowance amount of the credit impaired trade receivables and contract
assets is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit losses.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2019, the trade receivables and contract assets amounting
to HK$56,155,000 and HK$143,980,000 respectively. As at | April 2018
(date of initial recognition of HKFRS 9), the trade receivables and contract
assets amounting to HK$20,705,000 and HK$80,283,000 respectively.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 30, 14 and |6, respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable from
the engineering service contracts by the Group to external customers. The
Group's revenue is solely derived from electrical and mechanical
engineering (“E&M engineering”) services with the focus on the supply,
installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical
system in Hong Kong during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
services based on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BE_ T NF=A=+-AL%FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. WmEkoMWERE)

Revenue (Cont'd) Wz (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 P _E-NF=A=1—HILFE
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue iy W=Dk

(if)

For the year ended

31 March 2019
BE-ZE-hF
=A=+-—8H
ILFE
HK$'000
FET
Type of services gy bt
— Supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC system — — & « 2258 & 4 (S B R
ERRL 315233
— Supply, installation and maintenance of low voltage — e REREEEEER
electrical system =5 81,115
396,348
The revenue recognised for the current year is mainly from private REEBRANKZZTENRE
sector projects in Hong Kong. BEMEIEE o
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation iy PETEFEAFRSBEAOE
for contracts with customers ENR S EE
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RZE—NF=A=+—H"
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019 PEHTFEFEANRBELNS
amounting to approximately HK$I,157,287,000. Based on the F(RBITHEBDREBEIT) B
information available to the Group at the end of the reporting T HEIEA) A 1,157,287,000 7%
period, management expects that the remaining performance JL e BN AREEHNHE R
obligations will be recognised as revenue during the years ending 3| AEMER - SIEETEE TIJ
March 2020 to 2022. HREOETHERRBE

TE-_TF=ZA=+—H=ZE
T —F IFFERAWRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
chief operating decision maker (that is, Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr.
Lau”), who is the Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the
Company) reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of this single
segment is presented.

Geographical information
No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue
are all derived from Hong Kong based on the location of services delivered
and the Group’s property and equipment amounting to HK$2 1,665,000 as
at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$22,121,000) are all located in Hong Kong by
physical location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 10% or more of
the Group's total revenue during the years is as follows:

5.

Wz K o RRER ()

2 ERE R
REBRDENRAFEMNS » T2
RERRE(NOAEERENEE
HE(TRIRAE]D - RRBTTHAR KR
WITER)RIAKREBRREREN
BATEAROR - Eitt - AEBEER —E
BE-NgE08 HYEEIULE
— D EPHE— BB M E D
A e

HEER
WEZFHEDEBER - TIRRIR
BEREREAHE  AEEAKE
HREBRE  MEZEENERME
2o KEEBR -_ZT—HLE=A
=+ —H A216650008 T( ==
— J\&F 22,121,000 7T) ER
REHILINES °

FRIEEFNESHR
RERIRE GRS B W #F7R 10%
SAERNFEFPRWERIT -

For the year ended 3| March

BE=A=1+—HILEE

2019 2018

—g-nE S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Customer A =ZEA 79,091 53,024

Customer B =FB 75,490 58,626
Customer C EFC 60,654 N/A N3 A *

Customer D EPD N/A N8 A * 85,549

Customer E XPFE N/A 758 F * 69,732
& Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the * REBEE  REGEEREKISER

respective year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 6. EENEEME
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EBRESTHRAENME
During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the emoluments NEBEZE2 T —HLELE —ZF
paid or payable by the entities now comprising the Group to the =NE= H =r=[E IkEE -
directors and chief executive of the Company were as follows: REBREBENEERAQ
AEERTBTHABEN
SRS -
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
RBARER
-tk e SRR B JEEA @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TER
For the year ended BE-ZE-1F
31 March 2019 ZA=t—-RLHFE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yu bt — 2,376 495 18 2,889
Mr. Lau %4 — 1,992 415 18 2,425
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Yu Ho Chi AER 156 — — — 156
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam WA 156 — — — 156
Lee Wing Kee Aok E 156 — — — 156
To Yan Ming Edmond HEE 156 — — — 156
624 4368 910 36 5938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 6. EENEEME (E)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd) @ EERBESTHRAENMSE
(&)

Retirement

benefit

Directors’ Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total

RTRA
EEHE ok M5 T2l @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT THT TRT TRT TRT

For the year ended BE-E-N\%§
31 March 2018 ZRAE+-ALEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yu Lt — 2268 [,134 18 3420
Mr. Lau 2%k — 1,896 790 8 2,704

Non-Executive Director *HTES

Yu Ho Chi CINE S 120 — — — 120
Independent BYFHITES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam WA 120 — — — 120
Lee Wing Kee ok E 120 — — — 120
To Yan Ming Edmond HEIS 120 — — — 120
480 4,164 1 924 36 6,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd)

The emoluments of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

The emoluments of non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.

During the years ended 3| March 2019 and 2018, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. No directors have waived any remuneration during
both years.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two directors whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in (a) above for each of
the years ended 3| March 2019 and 2018. The emoluments of the
remaining three individuals for each of the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

6. EBRESME(H)

@)

(b)

ESRESTHRAENME
(%)
EXFREIEE KRB AR
MeRREREERNRA N
H /8 & B F 75 1 A SR R
HBH < o

EXFRIFMTESE KB
FATESTNFTFHAREE
EARREFME -

REBEEFT-NAFE_-F
—NE=ZA=+—HBILFE -
AEBYEAARRNREET
%7 B (F /5 T 3l R DA 3K
RINAZR SR B By 1O 228 - 3
TEREERARE - KRMESE
BEEERETMAHH -

EEMS
hEGEeFALTRESEZ -
E-—NhER=-_E—NF=A
=+ BULEFESFHEE
AL QIFEFHMRBES -
BE_ZT—hLEFE_F—N
FZA=+—"BIEERF
Hep =B ALTHBSmT -

For the year ended 3| March
BE=-A=1T—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits e hEMmER 3,162 2,940
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  ERE A 5230 54 54
3,216 2,994
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

Employees’ emoluments (Cont'd)

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 6.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EEREEME (&)

EEMS (2)
REMWEN FATHE -

For the year ended 3| March
HE=-A=1T—-RHLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E)\F
Number of individuals
EE A"
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 == 1,000,000 7T I 2
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7L Z 1,500,000 4 7T 2 I

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no emoluments

were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN

RBE-T-AER-F
~NE=A=t—RILERE
AEBLBEARLRSHA
TS fEBREIRE
A B A0 A 7 55 [ 74 o 35 )
S {E A BB -

H AW A R H 1K

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1T—HLHFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Other income: Hab A -
Bank interest income ERTTH BUTA 921 495
Interest income from debt instrument at KB IR AT BRI EIS T A
amortised cost 79 A S A 72 —
Dividend income from insurance policy R EREMREKA 60 59
Dividend income from financial assets REBERAFEFTABRZRN
at FVTPL TRHEENRERA 215 o
Sundry income FETEA 56 103
1,324 657
Other gain: Hitblz# :
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL RATEF A BRNemEE
A EW R 979 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCE COSTS

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

8. BEMRA

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=t+—-HLFE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FH&T

Interests on bank borrowings RITIEAE 396 410

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. PMRBIADEF

For the year ended 3| March

BE=A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T THET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at MR BRI Ve A A FOBR LA N B IHIZE R ¢
after charging:
Auditor's remuneration 12 25 B =5 B 1,380 1,380
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREEITE 1,393 1,529
Directors’ emoluments (note 6) SE=ME (FizEe) 5,938 6,604
Other staff costs: B8 T :
Salaries and other benefits e N EMET] 46,013 35,549
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREAFT B R 1,680 1312
Total staff costs B T A 4E%a 53,631 43,465
Minimum lease payments under operating WAMELLEHEERT
leases in respect of office premises HIEBEN= 1,827 1,090
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hz-

10.

Z-NEZR=T—HILERE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FREBIMAX

For the year ended 3| March
BE=A=1+—-HLFE

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: FENEH -
Current tax BNEAT 18
Provision for the year FREHE 4,765 7,602
Under (over)-provision in prior years BEFEEENT (BRERE) 34 24
4,799 7,578
Deferred taxation (note 24) EIERIE (M 7E 24) (219) 14
4,580 7,592

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill"") which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

134 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED / Annual Report 2018-19

RZBE—-N\E=A=-+—R8 &S
VEAERB T —LEMBEUER)
(B7)EBIER(TEHIESR]) -
HE|AFBHRES - EHIERR
—E-NE=A-+N\BREEK
BEAERTHRBATIEERR - BIEZ
FIEHMAEH  GEREBEER
B2 B 8B Ta 8 1%8.25% K &
B MBB2AB BT RF B
1 165% M TR - TREE ZH
SHRAGERNEEER 2 G T
B R 16.5% 2 B — T R-F -

Hilt - BAFEER  BEBEKER
ERNEEFNESHRIEZE2BEEST
2 AAETFERR TS A A 8.25% KR8 2
BEATZHFERE ®M&
|65%5T & o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 0.

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

FREBM< (&)

FR - BIERXEES R REA
2 TH YA K B R A AT R N E RR a8
T

For the year ended 3| March
HE=A=t+—-HLHEE

2019 2018

—g-hfE —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THTT

Profit before taxation B 250 AT A 27,277 43,178

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBFESHREE 165% 5T H 1

of 165% TiIE 4,501 7,124
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBBANTBZE

tax purpose (373) o1
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR 5 S R TS 2

tax purpose 576 606

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIBEENHISTE 7 7

Under (over)-provision in prior years BEFENRETE GERERERE) 34 (24)

Income tax at concessionary rate REEUEAENMEN (165) —

Others HAtb — (30

Income tax expense for the year FAMGEHAX 4,580 7,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the following data:

BREF
BERERBNOFTETDERATH
=

For the year ended 3| March
HE=A=t—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Earnings: B :
Eamnings for the purpose of calculating AEEREARAFAMALN
basic earnings per share BR(RRBHER A
(profit for the year attributable to EmFREM)(TET)
owners of the Company) (HK$'000) 22,697 35,586
Number of shares: RINEEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Fhat & SR EAREF| 2 T
for the purpose of calculating basic RARINEF
earnings per share 400,000,000 400,000,000

No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018 was presented as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share in
issue for both years.

DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 of HK2.2 cents per ordinary share (HK$8.8
million in aggregate) was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 3| March 2019 of HKI.4 cents per ordinary
share (HK$5.6 million in aggregate) has been proposed by the directors of
the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. YWERRE
Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold Furniture and office
buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment Total
HELTH HRAR EK
REF HERE BELE WA @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FiEx TERT FTHEx TERT
COST B
At | April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H 24,088 2,114 1,080 2,554 29,836
Additions NE — — 106 687 793
At 31 March 2018 R-E—-NE=A=+—H 24,088 2,114 1,186 3,241 30,629
Additions NE — 384 230 323 937
At 31 March 2019 RZZ2E-NE=ZA=1+—H 24,088 2,498 1,416 3,564 31,566
ACCUMULATED RitiE
DEPRECIATION
At | April 2017 RZE—+FMA—A 2,761 1,305 886 2,027 6,979
Provided for the year FREHE 705 423 116 285 1,529
At 31 March 2018 R-_Z-N\F=A=+—H 3,466 1,728 1,002 2312 8,508
Provided for the year FENEE 705 242 107 339 1,393
At 31 March 2019 R_Z2-NE=A=+—H 4171 1,970 1,109 2,651 9,901
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 March 2019 R-E-—h&E=A=+—H 19,917 528 307 913 21,665
At 31 March 2018 R-Z2—-\F=A=+—H 20,622 386 184 929 22,121

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Fumniture and fixtures
Computer and office equipment

Over the term of the lease of 34 years

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease or 5 years

20%

20%

EYE R R E B R E SRR
THEFRYE :

HELHRETF

HEXE

REHMFER
RFEEIEL 5 F (JAR
KERE)A
FRAKETFEE 20%
BN ARE 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

4. TRADE RECEIVABLES 4. BEZEWFIE

As at 3| March

R=B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 56,522 23,172
Less: Impairment loss allowance B EEEERE (367) —
Total trade receivables B Z RN IR 56,155 23,172
As at 31 March 2019 and | April 2018, trade receivables from contracts RZZE-NF=A=+—HBERZ=ZE
with customers amounted to HK$56,155,000 and HK$20,705,000 (as —\EMA—H " REEFAELH
disclosed in note 2.1) respectively. B 5 WK IE 5 Rl /& 56,155,0008
7T 520,705,000 % 7T ( 5% ZA B 5 2.1
FI#EE) o
The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date REBBEHNIIREERIEZEEA
of invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the HfmEEFPEE30RNEAE -
trade receivables net of impairment loss allowance presented based on the REBRESHRENEZAHZIH
invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows: B 5 W EIE (IR B EE B EE)
FRECDATLAT
As at 3| March
R=ZA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FET
0-30 days 0E 30K 41,833 16,103
31-60 days 31 260K 10,498 A
61-90 days 61 290K 1,708 555
Over 90 days 3B 90 K 2,116 2,080
56,155 23,172
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

As at 3| March 2019, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,322,000 which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$2,1 16,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as
these balances are either from debtors with long term business relationship
or with expected subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year ended
31 March 2019 are set out in note 30.

As at 3| March 2018, 69.5% of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have good credit quality. These customers have no
default of payment during the year.

As at 3| March 2018, included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,069,000 which are past due
as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
based on the invoice date:

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

BESEWRFIE (&)
N_TE—hE=ZA=+—8 A&
EEZRENGFBELHBIERAEE
14,322,000 T FE W BR 7 » % &
RN RS BB EE - Mm%
f 2,116,000 7% 7T A FRIE B 1L HA 90
KA EBARWARIEEL - ThAR
ZEEHBREERPEBBENE
AN TERBEEN - AEEME
M2 S ERIFTEEAEEY -

ERBE_T-NF=A=1t—H
IEFE 2 B 5 R WGRIR R E R b HY
FHIBEAMIFE30

RZE—NF=ZA=1+—H - 69.5%
REHSBENEZEBFIEAR
FEEEXR ZERFPRFRILE
HERAEK o

RZE—NEFE=A=+—H ' ' K&&
BE FZEWFSIEL S IEREEmARE
7,069,000 T H FE I BR 7K+ 22 BR
FRFEBHE B - MAKEL
E I ER R EBERE - A58
MERZEERTEE TR -

ERBZRABELNEBBRERR
BENE S RKFIARER DT -

As at

31 March 2018
R=Z— )\
=A=+—8H
HK$'000
THT

31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

31 260K
61 290K
838 90 K

4434
555
2,080

Total FEE

7,069
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

15.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 5. HEWKFHIE - RENRFBEANX
b=l
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TETT
Deposits Bm& 829 526
Deposits in life insurance policies (note a) ShRERe () 1,649 1,589
Deposits paid for acquisition of property and W2 KR EN D H1Z S
equipment 272 —
Retention receivables (note b) FEWR El € (F97Eb) — 36,968
Other receivables H At & KR 1,216 1,675
Prepayments and others TR FRIE R HAth 2,373 232
Total ) 6,339 40,990
Presented as non-current assets 20 EIERFBEE 2,654 2,036
Presented as current assets 2INRRBEE 3,685 38,954
Total st 6,339 40,990
Notes: BT -
@) The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the life insurance (@) ZERERNBAA R MEBEEHNFRIR
policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time, receive cash back BN RRABEER - AEEE
based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of withdrawal, which is IR RBIRIER A R ER S
equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy schedules with any BE(REEE])EIGRER - BIEZFR
dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions, less any indebtedness. AR ENRATHRTIRSEBEN
The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the Cash Value of the WA RAE ] RIEAL S RAE BB RUS R Iz
insurance policies. WRSBEMEMNER - SRARERE
BERREREEEMS °
(b) Retention monies withheld by customers of contract works are unsecured, interest-free and (®) BEMBENE N TIRRE S HEER -

recoverable after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years from
the date of completion of respective engineering service projects. Such retention receivables

were reclassified as contract assets on | April 2018 as disclosed in note 2.1.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and deposits for the

year ended 3| March 2019 are set out in note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I5. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2018, the retention receivables are expected to be settled,
based on the completion of the defect liability period:

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

I5. HMEWRFIE e RASLK
H (&)
RZE-N\F=A=+—8 " Elk
RESBREBEREHNEROTET L
BT

As at
31 March 2018
R-F—N\%F
=A=+—8H
HK$'000
THT
On demand or within one year BRERS R —FRAN 8,715
After one year — 1% 28,253
36,968
16. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 6. EHNEEREGHNAR
As at
31 March 2019 | April 2018"
—g-nE -2 \F
=A=+—H mA—A"
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
Contract assets BHREE 146,424 80,283
Less: Impairment loss allowance B EEEEEE (2,444) —
143,980 80,283
Contract liabilities SHEE 11,071 26,618
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of HKFRS I5. * A e EEATENHRELNS

|5 AT B, -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

l6.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision
of E&M engineering services. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for completion of E&M engineering services and not
yet billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is conditional on
factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right becomes
unconditional other than the passage of time. Remaining rights and
performance obligations in a particular contract is accounted for and
presented on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract liability. If
the progress payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
input method, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

The Group's engineering service contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the contract period once certain
specified milestones based on surveyors' assessment are reached.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works recoverable after the
completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, usually being
| to 2 years from the date of completion of respective E&M engineering
services projects. Normally the retention money will be accumulated up to
5% or 10% of the contract value.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in note 30.

For the contract liabilities as at | April 2018, HK$23,109,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2019.

The significant increase in contract assets in current year is resulted from
the increase in the Group's right to consideration for completion of E&M
engineering services but not yet billed under the relevant contracts as at 31
March 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 17. W EAEEASHNIREHE

WORK

As at

31 March 2018
R-F—N\%F
=A=1+—8H
HK$'000
TAT

Contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period:
Contract costs incurred plus recognised

RmEMRETHEL :

BELR OIS FEREF K

profits less recognised losses EHERERE 684,469
Less: Progress billings o EERRR (661,658)
22,811
Analysed as: A=
Amounts due from customers for contract work Bl EFE4TIEZE 39,217
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREPA4TIERIE (16,406)
22,811

8. DEBT INSTRUMENT AT AMORTISED COST

18. HEERAFIRNEZTA

As at
31 March 2019
R-Z-h#F
=A=+-8
HK$°000
FTHERT
Investment in a listed bond, with fixed interest R EEFE 9.50% K E B H &
of 9.50% and maturity date in November 2020 —E-TF+— A/
EHEFHRE 2,155
Details of impairment assessment of debt instrument at amortised cost for BHE-T-NF=ZA=1+—HLHF

the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 9. RAFEFTABEZENERMEE
LOSS
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BEIEAT(E ABZ NS
BE
As at 3| March
R=A=+—H
2019 2018
—B-nF —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT THT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong MEBE EHRIRAES 10,434 —
20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS 20 BEHEARTER EHETHF

AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 March 2019, short term bank deposits represents bank deposits
carrying fixed interest rate at 2.00% per annum with an original maturity
between three months and twelve months.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank
deposits carry at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three
months or less. As at 31 March 2019, the variable interest rates ranged
from 0.01% to 1.29% (2018: 0.01% to 0.70%) per annum.

As at 3| March 2018, pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
a bank as security of banking facilities granted to the Group including
certain long term facilities, carry at fixed interest rate of 0.7% per annum
and with original maturity over three months.
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21.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work
services ranges from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date and bills
payables presented based on the date of issuance of the bills at the end of

each reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

21, BEERARERENRE
MREBE DB TRERENE
REBENFI0E0K U TR
REREHURERBEZBHZ5H
BHRNFBARENZRRITAH
RN FRIRRER DT

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Trade payables: 5N FIE
0-30 days 0FE 30K 15,017 7,147
31-60 days 3l £ 60K 21,666 8,284
36,683 [543 1
Bills payables: AN
0-30 days 0E 30K - 1,096
31-60 days 3l 260K - [,298
— 2,394
36,683 |7,825
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 22. HMtEENRIEBERETER
As at 3| March
R=BA=+-—AH
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFET FABTT
Accrued staff costs FEEtE TR 5,627 4,362
Accrued contract costs FEET & IR 17,683 11,518
Other accrued charges Hupest& A 2,009 1912
Receipts in advance TaW R IE - 2,596
Retention payables (note) FERHRE S (FisE) 24,445 18,604
49,764 38,992

Note:

Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by the
Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years from

the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts.

fifeE : ENORERNENTIRRES/LE -
ABASBERBREOREHTRIZRK
REEBRORENGRZN - BEH
TRRRB & KITeRk B BIEEt N | 224F -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

23.

BANK BORROWINGS

RITE K

As at 3| March

R=B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Secured bank borrowings BEPIRITER 9,164 12,057
Carrying amounts repayable (note): fE(E R A (KRE)
Within one year R—FR 2,358 2910
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLA LB BAMRE
two years 733 2,379
More than two years, but not more than MELA BT ERRF
five years 2,359 2,312
Over five years iR F 3,714 4,456
9,164 12,057

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

All the bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 contain a repayable
on demand clause and are shown under current liabilities.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group'’s bank borrowings are as follows:

MiGE - BEAFIRTDER B a5 st #EE
B AR -

RZB-NER-ZZ-N\F=A
=t+— BHAARTERMGRZ
SREEE - WIINRBABT °

AEBRITEXNERMNKR(IE
RETHRIR) SEELAT

As at 3| March

R=BA=+—8H
2019 2018
—g-nE —F)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

BERFF

Effective interest rate (per annum): o
BRI R AE TR

Floating-rate borrowings

2.65%—-5.92% 2.09%4.84%

All bank borrowings as at 3| March 2019 and 2018 were guaranteed by
corporate guarantee of the Company.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by:

(i)  leasehold land and buildings owned by the Group as at 3| March
2019 and 2018;

(i)  deposits of HK$3 1,112,000 as at 3| March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had entered into a
facility agreement with a bank and had made undertakings relating to
certain obligation of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau pursuant to such facility agreement
including the following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the
largest shareholders of the Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr. Yu
and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director of the Company. Such
facility agreement remains effective as at 31 March 2019.

As at 3| March 2018, the Group had another facility agreement entered
into with a bank and had made undertakings relating to certain obligation
of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau pursuant to such facility agreement including the
following: (i) Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain majority
shareholding of our Company; and (ii) Mr. Yu shall remain the chairman of
our Company or we shall notify the bank 4 days in advance in case he
ceases to be the chairman. During the year ended 3| March 2019, such
facility agreement was renewed and the above-mentioned undertakings
relating to certain obligation of Mr. Yu and Mr. Lau was replaced by the
following obligation undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of Mr. Yu and Mr.
Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should
notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr. Yu is not entitled
to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14 days
in advance. Such facility agreement remains effective as at 3| March 2019.

23.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

RITER(E)
AEEETRITRE N TIIFIAE
A

iy RZE-NAFRZZF-NF
ZA=+—BAREEHEEAED
AE LT REF

iy RZE-—N\F=A=+—H
B9 31,112,000 4TI IR

BE-_ZT—-)\F=A=+—HItF
B AEBE—RIRITIL—DEk
Bk WREREHRELES
BARERBEENETETHE
HoORBENT (Ve ERBILE
AHEEKEEEREAERARN
BARRE Rkt RBIFLER
MEEARRNEFRES - %ot
B —_E—hE=A=1+—
HAR o
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ERBEENETEETHER 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEFIE
The following is the deferred tax assets recognised and movements THARKEEZERNEFENDHE
thereon during the current and prior years. RARIEFIIEE E MBS o

Accelerated

accounting
depreciation ECL provision Total
BYREE

mEEFHTE BiERE #at

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FEx

At | April 2017 R-ZZE—tFMA—H 27 — 27
Charge to profit or loss (note 10) Az Mk (K 10) (14) o (14)
At 3| March 2018 RZF-—N\F=A=1+—H I3 — I3
Credit to profit or loss (note 10)  &F Atz (FizE 10) 3 216 219
At 31 March 2019 R-F-—NE=A=1+—H 16 216 232
At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused estimated tax losses of R-ZE—NF=A=+—H &K
HK$ 181,000 (2018: HK$137,000). No deferred tax asset has been E¥EAAREAMGETIEERE 181,000
recognised in respect of such estimated tax losses due to the BT (ZZ—/\F : 137000/87T) °
unpredictability of future profit stream. All tax losses may be carried AR EEATER B2 & MARE
forward indefinitely. It 8 55 B A (L 5T A B S B R R IR
EFIREE AR EDG A &

PREpAEES -
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

PROVISIONS 25. BfE
Long service
payments
REBRB AR
HK$'000
FHET
At | April 2017 RZZE—+EFHA—H 357
Reversal for the year FREO (77)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—-—N\F=A=+—H 280
Provided for the year FREE 94
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—NF=A=+—H 374

The Group provides for the probable future long service payments
expected to be made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The provision represents the management's best estimate of
probable future payments which have been eamned by the employees from
their services to the group entities up to the end of each reporting period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are as follows:

AEBERERRETEREEDIIMA
12 B EH BV AT BE R R H AR 15 3K
AHEEE - BBIEEESHRESR
BEEEHNEECKRERATREER
78 #) AR 7% BT BREX AT BE AR 2R SR A%
EXCEI

26. RRA
RRABWRAEEFIBUT ¢

Amount
Number -]
of shares HK$ HK$’000
RIEE BT TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREME0I BT E AR
Authorised: EE
At | April 2017,31 March 2018and 2019 R-Z—+FMAF—H
2 N\FRZZE-NEF
=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBHEXM:
At | April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 2019 R =—Z—tFWA—H »
—E-N\FRZZ-NF
ER=ET—E 400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

27.

28.

29.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27.

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group pledged the following
assets to secure the bank borrowings and banking facilities including
performance guarantees issued by the banks.

The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows:

BEEEA

REREHR - AEEEFATE
ENRBRITERNRITRE (21
RITREWBEORE) FER -

EEREEREENT -

As at 3| March

R=A=+—8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank deposits RITIER — 31,112
Leasehold land and buildings HETHREF 19,917 20,622
19,917 51,734

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BABARS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group does not have any material related party transactions for both
years:

Compensation to key management personnel

Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which
represent the directors of the Company is set out in note 6(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concemn while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 23, and equity of the Group, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly
taking into account the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through issuance
of new shares and raising new borrowings or the repayment of the existing
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 £MTA
Categories of financial instruments SRIANER

As at 3| March

R=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZNES R EE 10,434 —
Financial assets at amortised cost R ANY R S Rt B E 161,591 N/A A3 A *
Loans and receivables B & EYRIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREESRBSEEY) N/A N3 A 253,953
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost 5 Ak AR 94,029 67,862
@ N/A: not applicable b NER : TEA
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEBERBE
The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, debt AEBEN ST ABFBRATER
instrument at amortised cost, trade receivables, other receivables and AERNEREE - WEHKAT
deposits, pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances RHEKIAE BHREEHRIE - H
and cash, trade and bills payables, other payables and accrued charges and WK RIERIES - EEFRITE
bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in o RHSRITER  |RITER KRR
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and T BHRNRELENREE H
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The ftb EH I KR BT B A RERTT 1B
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure Ko FAZEEMITANGFERS
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. MEEieE - AlzSem TANR

e K o a8 258 5% 5 R g B0 ERSR B
X - EREERREEZTER
PATELR MBS B T B IR 16 ©
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e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk

(0

Currency risk

The group entities have financial assets denominated in currencies
other than their respective functional currencies. Consequently, the
Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of functional
currencies relative to other currencies may change in a manner that
has an adverse effect on the value of the position of the Group’s
assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The exposure primarily arises from the investments in listed bond
denominated in United States dollars (“"US$").

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

300 ERTA(E)
BREREEEERKE (&)
i A

()

ERE R

SEERABUSEREE
BN BB ENERE
B Bt - AEBEHERNEE
EREMEBE ZEXFLE
g BAKERINEFERD
EEBEELETNEZENR

LA
oo
A

)

ZERBERKBRET(IE
TTDFIENR EHEFNHIKR

AEBEINEFEEBEER
WEPRWEmELT

As at 3| March

R=B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FH&T
US$ e 2,155 —

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in
exchange fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered to be
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the bank
balances as disclosed in note 20 as well as floating-rate bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 23 as at 3| March 2019 and 2018.
The Group's fair value interest rate risk primarily relates to fixed-rate
bond investment, pledged bank deposits and short term bank
deposits as disclosed in notes 18 and 20.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its
exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
arising from the Group's bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate risk on floating-rate bank borrowings. The
sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the floating-rate bank
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis is provided on
bank balances as the management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the sensitivity
analysis, which represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If the interest rate had
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2019 would decrease/increase by HK$38,000 (2018: HK$50,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in
equity securities measured at FVTPL and its investment in listed bond
measured at amortised cost. For equity securities measured at FVTPL
quoted in the Stock Exchange and listed bond measured at
amortised cost quoted in the Singapore Exchange Limited, the
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 0%
higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2019
would increase/decrease by HK$871,000 as a result of the changes in
fair value of equity securities measured at FVTPL (2018: nil).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group'’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the

obligations by counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the

respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adopts a policy on providing credit facilities to new

customers. A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial

information of the new customers, advice from business partners in relation

to potential customers and credit search, is required. The level of credit
granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the management.

Credit evaluation is performed on a regular basis.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables and contract
assets, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss allowance are made for
irrecoverable amounts on trade receivable and contract assets. Under
HKAS 39, provisions for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018, the Group
applies simplified approach on trade receivables and contract assets to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9. ECL on trade receivables and
contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the
internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
the respective customers. As part of the Group'’s credit risk management,
the Group applied internal credit rating for its customers and applying the
estimated loss rate ranging from 0.31% to 6.28% over the gross carrying
amounts. In this regard, management of the Group considers that the
credit risk on trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the Group makes
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information starting from | April 2018. The management of the
Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
other receivables and deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE-%—

30.

NE=ZR=+—RAILFRE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

Debt instrument at amortised cost

The Group’s debt instrument at amortised cost mainly comprise listed
bond issued by a company listed in the Stock Exchange. In view of the
listed bond price as at 31 March 2019 and the latest published financial
information of the issuer, the management of the Group believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s debt instrument at
amortised cost.

Pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and
bank balances of the Group is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation and credit ratings and no history of default in the past
and no impairment loss allowance for pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances was recognised upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group has limited exposure to any single financial institution.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to
certain customers. The Group's largest debtor contributed approximately
34% (2018: 37%) of the Group's trade receivables and 29% of the Group’s
contract assets (2018: 42% of the Group’'s amount due from customers for
contract work), respectively. The Group's five largest debtors contributed
approximately 88% (2018: 68%) of the Group’s trade receivables and 56%
of the Group’s contract assets (2018: 56% of the Group's amount due
from customers for contract work), respectively.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 30. £mTIAE)
HREMREERERBR (&)
EERERRERS(Z)

TRFMBETRMESBENG
MRS B SER ARSI R & B A
EREHNEEAENEERR :

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial
assets at amortised cost and contract assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External credit Internal credit I2m or Gross carrying
As at 31 March 2019 Note rating rating lifetime ECL amount
ShE wE  REASEH
RZE-hE=A=1+-H Lif=: EETR FEIR RBHEEFE REAH
HK$'000
THT
Financial assets at amortised costs REBERATIRNERMEE
Trade receivables B o RYWHIE 14 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 56,522
NEA Bzt | ZHITEE
FEEB#E
Other receivables and deposits H i e za ik s [5 N/A Note 2 [2m ECL 3,966
N PirsE2 1218 A 785
FEEE
Debt instrument at amortised cost RN AT RN ERTA 18 Ba3 N/A 12m ECL 2,155
NEH 1218 A
BHEEBE
Short term bank deposits RESRITER 20 A2 N/A |2m ECL 28,000
TEH 121 A 725
FEEE
Bank balances RITHER 20 Al-Baa2 N/A 12m ECL 71315
i 1218 A
BHEEEAR
Other items HiEH
Contract assets BHBE 16 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 144925
TER Bzt | 2 HEH
FEERE
|6 N/A Note | Lifetime ECL 499
(credit impaired)
TEA Bzt 1 FHEE
EEBR
(FEHME)
Notes: Bzt -

I For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL. ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the internal credit
ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of the respective customers.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information to
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. All of these
balances are not past due at 31 March 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE-%—

30.

NE=ZR=+—RAILFRE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under the simplified
approach.

300 ERTA(E)

BBEBREEEEREE(E)

EERBRRBER ()
TRBEREREBOELE FEUGR
EREHEERBN2MBEYEES
IR -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) (credit impaired)
2HRAEERE 2HRSEERE
(RBEEEHE) (REEEHE)
Trade Contract Trade Contract
receivables assets  receivables assets Total
g% )
EEHE AHEE RUIE GHEE Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Asat | April 2018 R=B-N¥NA-H = = = — —
New financial assets originated BT REE 367 945 — | 499* 2811
As at 3| March 2019 RZB-AE=A=1-H 367 945 — 1,499 2811
& The lifetime ECL recognised for credit impaired contract assets is resulting from a debtor who & RELBREERENGNEERRNE

went into liquidation process during the year. The gross amount of credit impaired contract
assets is approximately HK$1,499,000.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of
each reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 30, @I EE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) R EEREERERE (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBEERER(EF)
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Repayable Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand | year  cash flows amount
InEF19 AERRE
ERRE ZREREE R RESE REAE

%  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TRET TET

As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF
=A=t—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JE{T4 SR E B
Trade and bills payables BHRNFIER N/A — 36,683 36,683 36,683
ENRE NEM
Other payables and H R zIaR N/A — 48,182 48,182 48,182
accrued charges [T ER TEH
Bank borrowings FITER
— floating rate L LES 3.82 9,164 — 9,164 9,164
9,164 84,865 94,029 94,029
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Repayable Within  undiscounted carrying
interest rate on demand | year cash flows amount
DIAEF5 AUREE
BERAMZ RERER —FR  RELE KELE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THET
As at 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F
ZA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FEFTE SR E &
Trade and bills payables BHRNFTIER N/A 2 17,825 17825 17825
ENER NEH
Other payables and Hofth e KB K N/A — 37,980 37980 37,980
accrued charges BT ER TEH
Bank borrowings RITIEN
— floating rate —FEFIE 340 12,057 — 12,057 12,057

12,057 55,805 67,862 67,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The amounts included above for variable interest instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of each reporting period.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
“Repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 3|
March 2019 the aggregate carrying amount of these bank loans amounted
to HK$9,164,000 (2018: HK$12,057,000). Such bank borrowings of the
Group are expected to be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the management reviews the
expected cash flow information of the Group'’s bank borrowings based on
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank borrowings agreements
as set out in the table below:

30.

SRMIA®E)
BBEBREEEEREE(E)
REBETRR(E)

RS MERR - FBFREFHE

B FIE A B RR - AIETA
ERIERIEDTE S BB BRI
ATAMSBERERS -

M B R EREBIGRRITIERE
AL B BESTERERERE]
BREEBERN - AT —ALFE=A
=+—HB ZERTEFNEEAE
5 59,1640008 L ( —Z & — N\ F :
12,057,000/ 7C) - NEBEZZFRIT
BEREBEKBRER RS EE
EHHEEE -

HEERBECARME @ BERE
WRIE TR PTEERTT 18 5K tp s P At =
BEE A ERAKBERITERD
BHREREER

Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2t0 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate | year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
il S RERRE
BRAZ —fR -EmMF WEIF BALF RELE KAEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TET TER TAT
Bank borrowings: RITER
Asat3I March 2019  R-ZE-AF=A=1—H 3.82 2,646 2,876 3,99 10,477 9,164
As at 3| March 2018 RZE-N\§F=A=+—H 340 3255 2,607 2776 4783 13421 12,057
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 30. £mTIAE)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRTEAFEE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value RREMEEDNFETENLAE
on a recurring basis B BEENAFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end NEBEI S FIEEETINEH{EER
of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how RIBNFEtE - NRIBHMAEE
the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the FTZeMEEATETENER(LH
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value RGE AN EREASE)
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels | PA IR A (B 26 A SIS R o] &
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value REEBALEA=EEALNTE
measurements is observable. RENER(E—R2FE=4) °
. Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted . —WAFEAE N EREER
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities; EXBERNTRMBNRE
(RECTHAE)WEHE
. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other . ZRATFEFENREED
than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for BENITER@G ASZE (KRB
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. BEE—HARBREBIN) - T
derived from prices); and B & (ANER) sk E (AR
BERK)GE &k
. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation . =N FEFFEIEEESK
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not BENIEBEERTISE
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). (TR AB) NEE
A, -
Fair value as at
RTSIBHNATLE
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
Financial instruments “E-NE —E-N\F hierarchy ~ and key input(s)
$WMIA =A=1+-H =A=1+-H AVLERE HEERIERAYE
Financial assets at fair value Equity securities Nil Level | Quoted bid prices in an active market
through profit or loss listed in Hong Kong;
HK$ 10,434,000
BROTEFABRNEREE REBLTHREERS A R BTSN #(E

10,434,00078 7T

There is no transfers among Level | and Level 2 during both periods.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

ReZMEHRR] - — B — 2 I
mEE -

W IR E MR EL N FIEFEL
TREER A ENAFE
ARAEERR  REEMBRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
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3.

32.

NE=ZR=+—RAILFRE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme s available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$ 1,500 per
employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable to the
fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 9.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 3| March 2019, performance guarantees of HK$61,679,000 (2018:
HK$31,466,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the Group's
obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group and its
customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its
customers to whom performance guarantees have been given, such
customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or sum
stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to compensate
such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will be released upon
completion of the contract works. The performance guarantees were
granted under the banking facilities with details as set out in note 23.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors of the
Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group.
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33.

34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments in respect of office premises rented under
non-cancellable operating lease which fall due as follows:

33.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

RERERE
REEEREBEA

RERERR - AEBEABRES
ARGEKE SR EFER R ESHMH
ARRFERENFAELT

As at 3| march

R=B=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER THETT
Within one year —F R 2,222 499
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEELF(BIEEEMF) 2,221 82
4,443 581

The above operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for office premises. Lease for office premises is negotiated and fixed
for a term of two to three years (2018: two years) and one of these lease
agreements included a renewal option at the discretion of the Group for
further two years.

e HENKIERNEE AR
NEHZNENES - MAEHH
MEOBE SHRmE=F(=F
—\F:MEF) HF—HHENE
SAEE A RISEORMFEERN -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, BEXREIE
As at 31 march
R=A=+—~H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the RErE M BHREREETN
acquisition of property and equipment BAREEHE AU
contracted for but not provided in the M KRB E AR
consolidated financial statements 688 —
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. BT

On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its shareholders
on the same date, for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible employees (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director), the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest and other
eligible participants as specified under the Scheme. The adoption of the
Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the Company on 3
January 2017.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of
the Scheme.

R-ZE—XRE+-HXA AR
RIBERRNE B RBRRERD
B 5 5 A s B R T B (T &x T
g) ETEEHNEAARA - EWA
BB~ Rl s AR B K B 2RI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE T NF=A=t-HILEE

36.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

36. HEAARDRAMBRRRNER

As at 3| march

KR=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R E A FRRE 23 23
Loan to a subsidiary —RIf B AR ER 18,000 —
Debt instrument at amortised cost RS ANTI BRI B TR 2,155 —
Financial assets at fair value through AT (EF AR
profit at loss TEREE 10,360 -
30,538 23
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits HAEWRFIE - i2e
and prepayments RIBMFRIA 337 106
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NI E e 8,309 20,640
Short term bank deposits FEERERITER 20,000 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 37,092 46,753
65,738 67,499
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hib eI sIB R EFTE R 623 722
Net current assets RBEEFEE 65,115 66,777
Net assets BEEFE 95,653 66,800
Capital and reserves EXKEE
Share capital % 2R 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) it (B5E) 91,653 62,800
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A F#HEA AELER 95,653 66,800
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. ERAAXADABMBRRTRENER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd) (&)
Note: MisE :
Movement in the Company’s reserves RATNRERS
Accumulated
Share Other losses/retained
premium reserve profits Total
RitEE
B AP E HitfkE R E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT FAT FAT
At | April 2017 R=F—+FMA—H 83,223 23 (17,872) 65,374
Loss and total comprehensive expense FAERBREAEMXEE
for the year — — (2,574) (2,574)
At 31 March 2018 R=Z—\F=A=+-A 83223 23 (20446) 62,800
Profit and total comprehensive income F AR R 2 EBRABTE
for the year — — 37,653 37,653
Dividends recognised as distribution RAED KA E — — (8,800) (8,800)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H 83223 23 8,407 91,653
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NF=RA=1—HILERE
37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

37. MBMARNFE

RABIMBERRRBEREHIRAF

BT

Equity interest attributable

to the Group as at

ARER T ABEERE
Issued and full 31 March
Place and date paid share capital 2019 2018
Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation B #{TK =A=1-H Principal activities
WEAREE b3 A5 genl BRARRE ZE-NF ZB-N\F IEEP
Triumph Legend’ The BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
|6 March 2016
Triumph Legend" EBRELHE B 1 0003 100% 100% &EER
ZZ-RE=ZAtRA
Blissful Choice” The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
18 April 2016
Blissful Choice” ERRARS &R 2000%7T 100% 100% RERK
—E—A%MATNR
Shun Hing HK* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100%  Provision of E&M
[ August 1987 engineering services
JBEEE &R &k 480000078 7T 100% 100%  fRALHEE TI2ARES
“ANEENAT—R
Golden Light Engineening Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited* 28 November 1986
BRIRBRAR" A i 2500007 100% 00% EEXT

—WRET—A=1+NR

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

#

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during both years.
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

e ISR

For the year ended 3| March 2019
BET-NF=A=t-ALEE

38. MEEBMELRBENHIR

TRAVAKEREEZDAELR
BONEE BRAThIFHASE
B-MERDHELNBEERERS
MEBXARARAEZRERNAEBEE
RenEXTHOESRERDRE

MEMRIE -

Dividends
payable Bank borrowings Total
FERRE RITHER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FHBTT
At | April 2017 R-ZE—+FMA—H 14,963 14,963
Financing cash flows mERERE (3316) (3316)
Finance costs BbE R AR — 410 410
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\FE=H=+—H 12,057 12,057
Financing cash flows MEHEERE (8,800) (3289) (12,089)
Dividends declared EEIREE 8,800 — 8,800
Finance costs B & AR — 396 396
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H — 9,164 9,164

F3R 2018-19 / IBEE E (FERR) AR AR 167



Summary of Financial Information

MBENEE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five TXESIE B BT ERER R
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements 3B % 25 72 &9 7N £ (B T B B SR S 1Y 2 4
and the Prospectus is set out below. REERBROBE o

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
mERE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-0F —FF —F—tF —T-/\F ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAET TAT TAET TAET FET

Revenue Was 183,788 190,242 290,383 367919 396,348
Gross profit EF 22613 36,749 45991 62,331 47,644
Profit for the year F N A 12,142 23,648 10,052 35,586 22,697
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents) AR GEAL) 38 74 30 8.9 5.7
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (BL) N/A* N/A* 30 89 5.7

& Not applicable/ >3 FA

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
RAEE - AERER

As at 31 March

MR=RA=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ThF —TNF —T—tF —T/\F —F-hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET THERT

ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IEmENEE 35,801 24969 55,983 55,282 37,140
Current assets mENEE 107,909 135,944 209,760 260,254 306,858
Total assets EEE 143,710 160913 265,743 315536 343,998
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mENAE 68,254 70,155 72,930 87,214 106,682
Non-current liability ERBAER 505 385 357 280 374
Total liabilities waE 68,759 70,540 73,287 87,494 107,056
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable to ~ ANQA B A A B
owners of the Company B 74,951 90,373 192,456 228,042 236,942
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